kAl

Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

=2

AGENDA

Regular Meeting of the Kalamazoo Area Building Authority Board of Directors

January 9, 2020
2:00 PM

Call to Order

. Approval of the Agenda

Consent Agenda
a. Approval of Minutes from the December 12, 2019 Board Meeting

Citizen Comments on Agenda and Non-Agenda Items

a. Policy: A citizen shall state his/her name and address and may speak only one time, for
no more than three (3) minutes. This time may not be given to another citizen to extend
their time. During this time, you will be making statements, without discussion from the
Board, but you are welcome to make an appointment with the Building Official or Board

Chair to discuss your comments further. (Approved by KABA Board on November 9,
2017)

Business

a. KABA Office Purchase (update)
Inter-local Agreement (discussion/changes)
2020 Budget Amendment
Holiday Schedule (amendment)
2020 Engagement Letter/Legal Counsel
Conflict of Interest (annual)

moo0oT

Financial and Building Reports
Bank Reconciliation Reports
Financial Reports

Building Report

Permit Lists

2019 Motion Log

coo oo

Board Member Comments
Staff Member Comments
Adjournment



Minutes
From
December 12, 2019
KABA Board of Directors
Meeting



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE
KALAMAZOO AREA BUILDING AUTHORITY
KALAMAZOO, MI
December 12, 2019

Chairperson, Michelle Mohney called the regular meeting of the Kalamazoo Area Building Authority (KABA)
Board to order at approximately 2:03 P.M. at the KABA offices, 2322 Nazareth Road.

Present: Michelle Mohney, Chairperson / Representative from Comstock Township
Sherine Miller, Treasurer / Representative from Kalamazoo Township
Lysanne Harma, Representative from Richland Township
Scott Hess, Representative from Pine Grove Township

-
Absent: Chester Emmons, Secretary / Representatigé;)‘/)/,/?n City of Parchment

Denise Barrons, At Large Ex-Officio B}}/%/d//é/;/}(/%j;ber

Also present were Building Official, Mike Alwine; KABA Attorngy. Robb’Ktueger; and Office
Coordinator/Recording Secretary, Penny Cassidy. / é}// %

- B oommcine Sl
Approval of Agenda - A motion was made by Ms./Miller'to approve the age da.as presented, seconded b
Ms. Harma, and carried with a vote of 4-0. ////% “q

&
a

N
&
N

‘V//////
. h N
Citizen Comments — There were no citize /fcom,t,ijénts. _
BUSINESS: ) / . %
5. a. KABA Office Purc%@%e) - A&e/{fZ;}brief 9}}}% Ms. gﬁ”ne motioned to table this jtem
to the end of Business, second{e/'d/ by M, Miller anéf/cfarriedﬁvi h awote.4-0

..o L 9
bt

5. b. 2020 Holiday Sch 29//!} -A mdgl/f/‘m was made;%y Ms. Harma to approve the holiday schedule and
allow the staff to choose the floating hdliday, nded’b¢,Ms. Mohney, and carried with a vote of 4-0.

hali .5EC0
A Cranaa 2 ot

e, % ,_
/}/Q/%//@ ¥ Crandall Z%motl “was made by Ms. Harma to approve the
%

etter/Siegfris

5. ¢. Enga

enqaqemf(%ﬁﬁﬁﬁer and QT%%}/Mohne%e authorify4f6sign the engagement letter, seconded by Ms. Miller
and carried With a vote of 4-0, “ v

0 Q. @,

5.d. KABA O ,@W%Eurchase (ug}f%"';te) - Mrfé};(rueger initiated the circulation of a resolution to the Board
of Directors giving“MrzAlwine the a ority to execute the foan documents for the loan from Southern

Michigan Bank & Tr t% motion wat made by Ms. Harma to_approve the resolution for the purchase of the

_— . P 777N .
building, seconded by M. Hess andZ4ffled with a roll call vote.

/%%p/{////

Financial Statements an jorts — Ms, Mohney followed up with KABA’s CPA on whether the board
needs to make adjustments to the contracted inspector’s expense or not in 2019, She was informed that
KABA is *one fund’; na adjustments are needed if the actual total expense does not exceed the hudgeted
total expense. If adjustments are needed, it must be approved within the fiscal year.

KABA Board Member Comments — Ms. Mohney announced a blood drive at Comstock Fire Station 91 on
Friday, Dec 13" from 1-7pm.

KABA Staff Comments — Mr. Alwine thanked the Board for all their support this year.
There was no further business and the meeting was adjourned at approximately 2:30 PM.

Drafted: December 16, 2019
Approved:



Inter-Local Agreement

e Discuss changes to amend agreement
¢ Postponed from the September 12, 2019 Board Meeting



RESTATED INTERLOCAL STATE CONSTRUCTION CODE ENFORCEMENT AND
ADMINISTARTION AGREEMENT

This Restated Agreement (“Agreement”) is made this day of ,

20 , by and between the undersigned Local Units of government within the County of

Kalamazoo, Michigan (hereinafter the “Local Units™).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, each of the undersigned Local Units has previously elected to administer
and enforce the Michigan State Construction Code, pursuant to the Stille-Derossett-Hale Single
State Construction Code Act, 1972 P. A. 230, as amended, (hereinafter the “Construction Code

Act™), for regulating and controlling building construction within each of said Local Units; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of said Local Units to herein provide for and continue the
joint enforcement and administration of the Construction Code Act under the terms and
conditions herein contained and in accordance with the provisions of the “Urban Cooperation
Act” (1967 P.A. Ex. Sess. 7—M.C.L.A. § 124.501 et seq.) as well as other pertinent faws and

statutes in the State of Michigan.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the covenants and conditions

herein contained, it is hereby agreed by and between the Local Units hereto as follows:

1. Joint Construction Code Authority.

There is hereby created, established and continued a Joint Construction Code Authority,

known as the Kalamazoo Area Building Authority (hereinafter “KABA”™), which shall be a



separate legal entity governed by an Authority Board (hereinafter the “KABA Board”)
established under Section 7 of the Urban Cooperation Act, consisting of one elected official
selected from the governing body of each Local Unit for a two-year term and until a successor is
selected by said governing body (“Elected Official Board Member™). Each Local Unit may also
appoint an alternate elected official who may serve on the Board only in such case as when its
regularly Elected Official Board Member is unable to attend a scheduled meeting of the KABA

Board.

At Large Board Member

In addition to the Elected Official Board Members, if the selection process for the KABA
Board results in an even-number of board members, the KABA Board shall select one additional
KABA Board member who shall be a resident of Kalamazoo County and who is not employed
by any of'the participating Local Units. This member shall be deemed an At Large Board
Member who is authorized to attend all KABA Board meetings and who shall serve as a voting
member of the Board during those times when the composition of the KABA Board is an even
number. At such times when the Board is composed of an uneven number of members the At
Large Member shall continue to serve in an ex-officio capacity with the Authority to advise and
consult the Board, but whose vote shall not be counted in any action of the Board. The Elected
Official Board Members and any Resident Board Members shall be authorized to approve

compensation or reimbursement for costs for the At Large Board Member.

Resident Board Members

If at any time, KABA consists of three (3) or less Local Units, each Local Unit shall, in

addition to its appointed Elected Official Board Member provided for hetein, select one (1)



resident of its jurisdiction who shall serve as a “Resident Board Member”. The Resident Board
Members shall continue to serve until such time as a fourth Local Unit shall join KABA, or until
the end of the Resident Board Member’s respective Elected Official Board Member’s term,
whichever shall occur first. The Resident Board Member s authorized to attend any meeting or
function of the KABA Board and their vote shall be counted in any actions taken by the Board.
The Resident Board Member shall not be an employee of any of the participating Local Units.
The Elected Official Board Members and the At Large Board Member shall be authorized to
approve compensation or reimbursement of costs for a Resident Board Member, Compensation
and cost-calculations (such as mileage reimbursements) shall be the same for all Resident Board

Members regardless of which jurisdiction they are appointed by.

A. Primary Activities and Purpose.

The primary purpose of KABA shall be, and authorization is hereby given under Secfion
5 of the Urban Cooperation Act, the power to administer and enforce the State Construction
Code within the boundaries of each Local Unit; to enact administrative rules to carry out its
functions; to hire sufficient building inspectors, contract inspectors and other personnel
necessary to accomplish the foregoing; to establish a uniform schedule of fees for the issuance
of building permits and inspection of work and materials which bear a reasonable relationship to
the cost and expense of the administration and enforcement of the State Construction Code; to
arrange for the collection of said fees and their deposit in a “Construction Code Authority
Account” maintained by the KABA Treasurer, who shall maintain books of account of all
receipts and expenditures by KABA, which shall be accounted for by an annual independent

audit prepared and presented to each Local Unit. In addition, KABA shall have the power to



buy, own, sell or lease real or personal property, seek and receive grants, sue or be sued, invest

surplus funds and any other necessary and proper matters agreed upon by the Local Units.

KABA shall arrange for one or more locations convenient to the public where copies of
the building and construction codes are maintained for review and/or purchase by interested
persons and where building permits and other permits may be obtained and inspections of work

and material ordered.

B. Additional KABA Activities.

The KABA Board shall be authorized to expand the scope and purpose of KABA to undertake
additional administration, inspection, or enforcement services for the Local Units or by contract
for other Governmental Units located within the State of Michigan in the areas of zoning,
driveway permits, rental housing certification, code enforcement or other inspection or
enforcement related activities that the KABA Board deems beneficial to the financial and
administrative goals of KABA (the “Expanded Purposes™). Engaging in the providing of any of
the Expanded Purposcs for any Local Unit or by contract for any other Governmental Unit shall
be at the discretion of the KABA Board and shall be based upon the cost and feasibility of

providing such services and the benefits of offering the services to KABA.

2. Organization of Construction Code Authority,

Members of the KABA Board appointed under Section 1 above, shall meet each January
at a location mutually agreeable to all and select a Chairman, Treasurer and Secretary from
among their membership and such other officers as the KABA Board may deem appropriate.

The names of such officers shall be reported by the Secretary of the KABA Board and to the



Clerk of each Local Unit. Said officers shall serve for a one-year term and until their successors

are selected.

The KABA Board shall determine the dates and times of any regular meetings it wishes
to schedule and shall hold special meetings at the call of the Chairman or Secretary upon
appropriate notice to each member at such times and places as may be determined to be
necessary and convenient. All meetings of the KABA Board shall be open to the public in
accordance with the Michigan Open Meetings Act. The KABA Board shall adopt rules to

govern the proceedings at all its meetings.

3. Budget.

On or before September 1 of each calendar year, the KABA Board shall prepare a
proposed budget of estimated expenses covering the period of the next fiscal year of KABA,
together with anticipated revenues during said period, and shall submit the same to the Clerk of

each participating Local Unit for the review of each of the governing bodies of said Local Units.

The governing body of each Local Unit shall either approve or disapprove said budget on
or before November 1 of each year. If such proposed budget is not approved by all Local Units
on or before November 1 as provided herein, a representative of the governing body of each
participating Local Unit, who is not then on the KABA Board, and the KABA Board shall meet
jointly (hereinafter the “Joint Budget Meeting”) for the purpose of attempting to develop a
budget acceptable to all Local Units which shall be submitted for approval by each Local Unit.
If the budget resulting from the Joint Budget Meeting is approved by less than all of the Local
Units, but by more than fifty percent (50%) of the Local Units, then it shall become the approved

budget and all units shall be bound. [fthe budget is not approved by more than fifty percent



(50%) of the Local Units by December 30, the prior years’ budget shall, on the following
January 1, become and be deemed the “Default Approved Budget” for the next fiscal year, and
KABA shall be dissolved at the end of the next fiscal year unless at least two (2) Local Units
that voted in favor of the budget shall vote to remain as members of KABA. In the event that at
least two (2) Local Units vote to remain members of KABA as provided for above, those Local
Units who do not vote in favor of remaining in KABA and those Local Units who voted against
the budget, shall be deemed to have voluntarily withdrawn from KABA, effective as of the end
of the next fiscal year. Each Local Unit, upon being notified that KABA has an approved
budget, shall thereupon each be liable to contribute its proportionate share of said budget which
is not covered by fees collected by KABA. Such proportionate share shall be determined by the
ratio of the dollar value of permits administered by KABA, issued by each participating Local
Unit to the total dollar value of permits, administered by KABA, issued in all participating Local

Units for the fiscal year preceding that covered by said budget,

After the budget has been approved or is deemed approved as provided for above, each
Local Unit shall pay to the Treasurer of KABA, at the beginning of each quarter, their allocated

portions of such budget.
4. Bonds.

All employees handling any funds of KABA or of any participating Local Unit shall be
bonded in an amount sufficient to cover the maximum amount of funds which might be in the

possession of said employee at any one time.



5. Unanticipated Expenses.

Any unanticipated and unavoidable expenses or losses incurred by KABA in the
performance of its duties and functions, including but not limited to litigation expense or liability
for personal or property damages, shall be proportionately shared by all Local Units in the same
manner budget expenses are shared under Section 3.

6. Voluntary Withdrawal of Local Units.

Any Local Unit of KABA may voluntarily withdraw from KABA upon one (1) year
written notice to the KABA Board and all other Local Units who are members of KABA. In the
event of the withdrawal of a Local Unit or Units, (as opposed to dissolution of KABA), such
Unit shall be entitled to receive its proportionate share of any undistributed surplus funds after all
expenses of KABA have been paid, in the ratio of the dollar value of the permits administcred by
KABA, issued by the withdrawing Local Unit to the total dollar value of the permits
administered by KABA, issued by all participating Local Units in the preceding fiscal year but
not any of the other assets held by KABA. In the event that either the budget is not approved by
a majority of the Local Units or a majority of the Local Units elect to withdraw from KABA at
the same time, this Agreement shall terminate, and KABA shall be dissolved, unless within thirty
(30) days thereafter, at least two (2) of the Local Units that voted in favor of the annual budget
affirmatively vote to continue KABA or at least two (2) of the Local Units that have not elected
to withdraw shall affirmatively vote to continue KABA. In the event that the budget is not
approved by a majority of the Local Units but at least two (2} Local Units affirmatively vote to
continue KABA, the Local Units which do not affirmatively vote to continue KABA shall be
deemed to have elected to voluntarily withdraw. Upon voluntary withdrawal, each Local Unit

who has withdrawn or has been deemed to have withdrawn shall be responsible for its own



enforcement and administration of the State Construction Code, and any of the expanded
purposes which are administered by KABA. In the event that KABA is dissolved, any
undisbursed funds and other assets held by KABA shall be distributed between the Local Units
who are then members of KABA, after all expenses of KABA have been paid, in the ratio of the
dollar value of permits administered by KABA issued by each Local Unit to the total dollar value
of the permits administered by KABA, issued by the participating Local Unit in the preceding

fiscal year.

7. Admission of Additional Local Units.

Additional Local Units may be admitted to membership in KABA at any time, with the
approval by resolution of the governing body of each of the then participating Local Units. As a
condition of admission, each new Unit shall approve and sign this Agreement (and any
amendments thereto) and agtee to be bound by the same. In addition, KABA may establish other
terms and conditions for the admission of any new Local Unit which shall be established and set
forth in writing, in all of the resolutions approving said new Local Unit’s admission adopted by
the governing body of each participating Local Unit. Examples of the terms and conditions that
may be added, include, but are not limited to, the charging of an initial membership fee and/or
admission fee and the amount thereof, requiring equipment and software purchases by the new
Local Unit (including the computer software and equipment necessary to allow the new Local
Unit to interface with KABA and its existing software), a waiting period during which the new
Local Unit may not participate in distribution of any proportional share of any excess funds or
other assets distributed by KABA to Local Units, as well as such other additional provisions as
the existing governing bodies of each of the Local Units of KABA, shall require at the time of

admission of the new Local Unit. Once admitted to KABA, each new Local Unit shall have the

8



same rights and responsibilities as every other member in KABA, subject only to any limitations

contained in the resolutions approving said new Local Unit’s admission to KABA.

8. Enforcement.

KABA shall be a body corporate with authority as the Enforcing Agency of each Local
Unit under Section 8b of the Construction Code Act and is empowered to discharge the
responsibilities of the Local Units under the Construction Code Act to sue and to enjoin any
violation of the Construction Code Act or for a fine or the imprisonment of any violator. It shall
not, however, have the authority to levy any type of tax or assessment against any Local Unit or

property therein.

9. Board of Appeals.

A Construction Board of Appeals is hereby established consisting of seven persons
appointed by the KABA Board. Members of the Board of Appeals shall be qualified by
experience or training to perform the duties of members of the Board of Appeals. The terms of

the members of the Board of Appeals shall be two (2) years.

10. Authority of Construction Board of Appeals.

The Construction Board of Appeals shall have such authority, power, rights and duties as
are set forth in the uniform ordinances adopted by the participating Local Units as well as such
power and authority as is set forth in the Construction Code Act not inconsistent with the
foregoing rights, powers, duties and authority established by local ordinance and the Michigan

Construction Code.



11. Effect of an Appeal to the Construction Board of Appeals and of a Decision of
said Board.

The effect of an appeal to the Construction Board of Appeals and a decision of said
Board shall be as set forth in the Construction Code Act and the State Construction Code where

the same is effective within the Local Units.

12. Attornev’s Fees.

In the event of a dispute arising from the breach of this Agreement the prevailing party or
parties shall be entitled to their attorney’s fees and costs in having to bring an action for

enforcement of these terms.

13. Jurisdiction and Venue.

In the event of any disputes between one or more of the parties to this Agreement over
the interpretation, implementation, or enforcement of this Agreement the matter under dispute,
unless resolved by the parties themselves, shall be submitted by filing of a civil action to the

Circuit Court for the County of Kalamazoo, State of Michigan.

14, Severability of Provisions.

If any provisions of this Agreement, or its application to any person, party, or
circumstance, is deemed by a court of law to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the
Agreement and the application of the provision to any other person, party or circumstance shall

not be affected and the Agreement shall be enforced to the greatest extent permitted by law.

10



15. Notices.

Any notices required by this Agreement shall be sent by written correspondence to ali of
the parties by first class mail to the offices of the Local Unit attention to the person in charge of
the Local Unit with copies being sent via first class mail or e-mail to each of the members of the

KABA Board.

16. Complete Agreement.

This Agreement is a complete agreement and restates and supersedes the Interlocal State
Construction Code Enforcement and Administration Agreement which was entered into on

March 5, 2012, and any amendments thereto.

17. Amendments.

This Agreement may be amended at any time by written agreement adopted by the

governing body of each participating Local Unit.

18. Term; Dissolution.

The term of KABA shall be perpetual and continuous; however, KABA shall be
dissolved (a) one (1) year after a Default Approved Budget is deemed approved because at lcast
fifty percent (50%j) of the Local Units cannot agree on a budget if less than two (2) Local Units
affirmatively vote to continue KABA, (b) in the event that withdrawal of the Local Units from
KABA leaves less than two (2) Local Units as members of KABA, or (¢) by unanimous

agreement of the Local Units,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned participating Local Units have executed this

Agreement as of the date and day hereinbefore set forth and in pursuance of a duly-adopted

11



resolution of the governing body of said participating Local Unit adopted at a duly-called

meeting of said governing body on the date set forth opposite said participating Unit.

COMSTOCK CHARTER TOWNSHIP KALAMAZOO CHARTER TOWNSHIP

Kalamazoo County, Michigan Kalamazoo County, Michigan
A municipal corporation A municipal corporation
By: By:

Randy L. Thompson Donald D. Martin

Its: Supervisor Its: Supervisor
By: By:

Michelle R. Mohney Mark E. Miller

Its: Clerk Its: Clerk
Pursuant to Resolution adopted Pursuant to Resolution adopted
Date Date
CITY OF PARCHMENT PINE GROVE TOWNSHIP
Kalamazoo County, Michigan Van Buren County, Michigan
A municipal corporation A municipal corporation
By: By:

Robert D. Britigan III Scott Hess

Its: Mayor Its: Supervisor
By: By:

Shannon Stutz Michelle Meert

Its: City Clerk Its: Clerk
Pursuant to Resolution adopted Pursuant to Resolution adopted
Date Date

12



RICHLAND TOWNSHIP
Kalamazoo County, Michigan
A municipal corporation

By:
Lysanne Harma
its: Supervisor
By:
Desiree LaDuke
Its: Clerk

Pursuant to Resolution adopted

Date

13



Amend 2020 Budget

o Adjustment to account for building maintenance



KALAMAZOO AREA BUILDING AUTHORITY

2020 BUDGET
Approved 10110/19

INCOME
4010 BUILDING PERMITS
4015 SPECIAL PERMITS
2020 ELECTRICAL PERMITS
4030 MECHANICAL PERMITS
4040 PLUMBING PERMITS
4600 INVESTMENT INCOME

Subtotal Income

TOTAL INCOME

EXPENSE
6010  ADVERTISING & MARKETING
B200  BANKFEES
6450  DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS

6501, 03, 05 PAYROLL - WAGES
6510  PAYROLL TAXES
6511  LIFE/AD&D/STD/LTD
8512 401(a)

6513  HEALTH INSURANGE
6700  GENERAL INSURANCE
8800  LEGAL FEES

6810 COMPUTER SUPPCRT (EXTERNAL)

6820 AGCCOUNTING SERVICES
7100 OFFICE EQUIPMENT
7110 OFFICE SUPPLIES

7115 POSTAGE

7125 COMPUTER (HARDWARE/SOFTWARE)

7130 RESOURCE MATERIALS
MORTGAGE

7420 LAWN CARE/SNOW REMOVAL
7450 MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS - OFFICE

7500 UTILITIES

7550 TRASH REMOVAL

7600 SECURITY (OFFICE)
7610 TELEPHONE - OFFICE
761 TELEPHONE - CELLULAR

7700 BUILDING BOARD OF APPEALS

7701 AT-LARGE/ALTERNATE BOARD MEMBER
7710 CONTRACTOR BUILDING INSPECTOR
7711 CONTRACTED ELECTRICAL INSPECTOR
7712 CONTRACTED MECHANICAL INSPECTOR
7713 CONTRACTED PLUMBING INSPECTOR

7800 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT
7810 TRAINING EXPENSE
7990 MISC

TOTAL EXPENSE

NET POSITION

310,725.00
7,926.00
110,867.00
116,004.00
63,120.00
120.00

608,832.00

608,832.00

2,000.00
200.00
575.00

231,488.40
18,178.87
4,442 .64
14,203.94
54,251.78
11,650.00
20,000.00
10,250.76
12,572.00
5,599.92
3,800.00
1,000.00
5,219.00
1,000.00
26,580.00
2,484.00
5,000.00
3,424.00
567.00
539.88
6,600.00
1,800.00
375.00
1,200.00
10,000.00
53,400.00
45,600.00
31,200.00
12,740.00
1,600.00
2,000.00

801,551.19

7,280.81



KALAMAZOO AREA BUILDING AUTHORITY

BUDGET COMPARISON
2020 to 2019
INCOME 2020 2019 Diff
4010 BUILDING PERMITS 310,725.00 279,432.00  31,293.00
4015 SPECIAL PERMITS 7,926.00 5,882.00 2,044.00
4020 ELECTRICAL PERMITS 110,867.00 90,240.00  20,627.00
4030 MECHANICAL PERMITS 116,004.00 92180.00  23,814.00
4040 PLUMBING PERMITS 63,190.00 50,815.00 12,375.00
4600 INVESTMENT INCOME 120.00 120.00 -
Subtotal Income 608,832.00 518,679.00  90,153.00
RETAINED EARNINGS (as of 12/31) 105,727.81 47,786.12  57,941.69
TOTAL INCOME 714,559.81 566,465.12 148,094.69
EXPENSE
8010 ADVERTISING & MARKETING 2,000.00 2,000.00 -
6200 BANK FEES 200.00 200.00 -
6450 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 575.00 575.00 -
6501, 03, 05 PAYROLL - WAGES 231,488.40, 228,992.40 2,496.00
6510 PAYROLL TAXES 18,178.87 17,696.16 482.71
6511 LIFE/AD&D/STD/LTD 4,44264 4,479.66 (37.02)
6512 401(a) 14,203.94 13,825.34 378.60
6513 HEALTH INSURANCE 54,251.78 3308528  21,166.50
6700 GENERAL INSURANCE 11,650.00 9,5614.12 2,135.88
6800 LEGAL FEES 20,000.00 20,000.00 -
6810 COMPUTER SUPPORT {EXTERNAL) 10,259.76 11,189.76 (930.00)
6820 ACCOUNTING SERVICES 12,572.00 11,429.00 1.143.00
7100 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 5,5609.02 5,603.88 {(3.96)
7110 OFFICE SUPPLIES 3,800.00 3,800.00 -
7115 POSTAGE 1,000.00 1,000.00 -
7125 COMPUTER (HARDWARE/SOFTWARE) 5,219.00 2,635.50 2,583.50
7130 RESQURCE MATERIALS 1,000.00 1,000.00 -
7400 RENT EXPENSE / MORTGAGE 26,580.00 26,580.00 -
7420 LAWN CARE/SNOW REMOVAL 2,484.00 2,484.00 -
7450 MAINTENANCE & REPAIRS - OFFICE 5,000.00 3,000.00 2,000.00
7500 UTILITIES 3,424.00 3,540.00 (116.00)
7550 TRASH REMOVAL 567.00 480.00 87.00
7600 SECURITY (OFFICE) 539.88 539.88 -
7610 TELEPHONE - OFFICE 6,600.00 6,480.00 120.00
7611 TELEPHONE - CELLULAR 1,800.00 1,776.00 24.00
7700 BUILDING BOARD OF APPEALS 375.00 375.00 -
7701 AT-LARGE/ALTERNATE BOARD MEMBER 1,200.00 1,200.00 -
7710 CONTRACTED BUILDING INSPECTOR 10,000.00 0.00  10,000.00
7711 CONTRACTED ELECTRICAL INSPECTOR 53,400.00 35,934.00 17,466.00
7712 CONTRACTED MECHANICAL INSPECTOR 45,600.00 26,602.00 18,998.00
7713 CONTRACTED PLUMBING INSPECTOR 31,200.00 22,100.00 9,100.00
7800 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 12,740.00 9,100.00 3,640.00
7810 TRAINING EXPENSE 1,600.00 800.00 800.00
7999 MISC 2,000.00 1,550.00 450.00
TOTAL EXPENSE 601,551.19 509,566.98  91,984.21
NET POSITION 113,008.62 56,898.14 56,110.48



Amend Holiday Schedule
Policy



APPENDIX A:

Holiday Schedule Policy

The following holidays will be paid holidays for full-time and part-time employees working a minimum
of twenty (20) hours per week:

New Year’s Day

Martin Luther King Day
President’s Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day

Veteran’s Day
Thanksgiving Day

. Day after Thanksgiving
10.Christmas Day
11.Floating Holiday (may be assigned by Building Official)

WONIU AWM

KABA holidays will correspond to the holidays observed by its member jurisdictions. This includes a
“floating holiday” that may be assigned at the discretion of the Building Official in a year where there
is an obvious day to designate as a holiday (for instance, Independence Day falls on a Tuesday and
the floating holiday is designated as Monday, July 3. If there is no day designated by the Building
Official for that year, KABA employees may choose to use their floating holiday at any point during
the calendar year {not to be taken in increments shorter than 4 hours) with the approval of the
Building Official.

If a holiday falls on a Saturday, KABA will observe the holiday on the preceding Friday. If the holiday
falls on a Sunday, KABA will observe the holiday on the following Monday.

Revision Date: December 13, 2018 34



2020 Engagement
Agreement / Legal Counsel



ERER

KREIS, ENDERLE, HUDGINS & BORSOS, P.C.

Robb S, Krueger P.O, Box 4010
Kalamazoo, MI 490034010

, s 2693243000
Direct Dial 269:321-2360 Fax 269-324-3010

rkrueger@KreisEnderle.com

www.KreisEndetle.com

ENGAGEMENT AGREEMENT
January 2, 2020

Kalamazoo Area Building Authority
2322 Nazareth Road
Kalamazoo, M| 49048

Re:  Representation
To Whom it May Concern:

We are required to obtain an engagement agreement before we begin work for a client.
The following constitutes the terms of our agreement. You have requested that this firm provide
Kalamazoo Area Building Authority general counsel, employment work, and potentially civil
litigation work. | emphasize that the firm will represent you because, even though your initial
contact has been with me, | intend to use the services of other lawyers and staff personnel of
the firm, as necessary, to do the best possible job of representing your interests.

l. FEE DETERMINATION

The Model Rules of Professional Conduct adopted by the Michigan Supreme Court lists
the following factors to be considered in establishing a reasonable fee for legal services.

1. The time and labor required, the novelty and difficulty of the questions
involved, and the skill requisite to perform the legal service properly.

2. The likelihood, if apparent to the client, that the acceptance of the particular
employment will preclude other employment by the lawyer.

3. The fee customarily charged in the locality for similar legal services.
4, The amount involved and the results obtained.
5, The time limitations imposed by the client or by the circumstances.

6. The nature and length of the professional relationship with the client.



Kalamazoo Area Building Authority
January 2, 2020
Page 2

7. The experience, reputation, and ability of the lawyer or lawyers performing
the services.

This firm normally sends bills to clients once each month. We begin by reviewing the
time devoted to the matter during the month. Time is recorded daily in one-tenth (1/10) hour
minimum time blocks. The time is multiplied by the hourly rate for the person performing the
services. Fees for Kalamazoo Area Building Authority are set as follows and shall apply for a
term of two years from the date of engagement:

A. General Counsel, Employment or Administrative work - $200.00 per hour.
B. Civil Litigation or Appeals, including alternative dispute resolution - $250.00 per hour,
C. Paralegal work to be billed at $120.00 per hour.

We are unable to provide an estimate of the final bill for most projects. There are many
factors which may serve to complicate a legal matter. If you have a question, at any time, as to
where you stand in regard to your bill, we will attempt to provide an accurate estimate of the
bill's current status.

il. EXPENSES

In addition to the legal fees, all expenses incurred by us will be charged to you.
Specifically, you will be charged for long distance telephone calls, photocopying (15¢ per copy),
mileage for travel out of town (IRS Standard Mileage Rate), postage (other than for routine
letters), couriers (FedEx and the like), and any other expenses reasonably necessary to
accomplish the task for which we have been engaged. There may be other expenses incurred
which are not among those enumerated above, which are the common expenses. In some
cases, you will be asked to pay expenses in advance.

. PAYMENT OF FEES AND EXPENSES

We have the option and the discretion to continue work on your behalf in the event your
retainer has been exhausted. In that event, you will be billed on a monthly basis. Al billings will
be payable upon receipt. Any agreement for other payment terms must be in writing. If billings
are not paid promptly, we shall have the option to not perform further services.

We reserve the right to discontinue our representation of you and withdraw as your
counsel if (1) you persist in a course of action we reasonably believe is criminal or fraudulent;
(2} we reasonably believe you have used our services to perpetrate a crime or fraud; (3) you
persist upon pursuing an objective that we consider repugnant or imprudent; (4) you fail
substantially to fulfill an obligation to us regarding our services to you, and we have given you
reasonable warning that we will withdraw unless the obligation is fulfilled; (5) our representation



Kalamazoo Area Building Authority
January 2, 2020
Page 3

to you will result in an unreasonable financial burden on us or has been rendered unreasonably
difficult by you; or (6) other good cause exists for withdrawal.

Iv. COMPLETION OF SERVICES

Upon completion of the firm's work, we reserve the right to destroy or otherwise dispose
of your file after we notify you at your last known address of our intent to destroy or dispose of
your file. It is, therefore, important that you notify the firm whenever you change your address.
If you choose to leave all or part of the file in our possession, we will have the authority to
destroy your file after three (3) years from the date your matter is finally concluded.

We appreciate the opportunity to represent you in this matter. If you agree with the
above terms, please sign the Acknowledgement below and return a signed copy of this letter to
our office. If you have any questions concerning this matter, please call me.

Very truly yours,

KREIS, ENDERLE,

RSK/lc

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

| have read, understand, and agree to the above terms of your engagement. No other
terms have been discussed.

KALAMAZOO AREA BUILDING AUTHORITY

Dated: , 2016

By:
Its:




Conflict of Interest

¢ Annual
+ A hard copy of the Acknowledgement of Receipt will be
available at Board Meeting for signature



KALAMAZOO AREA BUILDING AUTHORITY
CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY
Approved by Board on June 8, 2017
Article I

Purpose

Board Members and Officers of the Kalamazoo Area Building Authority (“"KABA”), a
governmental nonprofit authority and tax-cxempt organization, owe KABA the duty of loyalty.
This duty requires Board Members and Officers to act in the best interest of the KABA. The
Board Members and Officers shall avoid any conflict, or the appearance of conflict, between
their own interest and the interests of the KABA.

The purpose of this Conflict of Interest Policy (“Policy”) is to protect KABA’s interest
and integrity when it is contemplating entering into a transaction or atrangement that might
benefit the private interest of an Officer or Board Member of the KABA or might result in a
possible excess benefit transaction. This Policy is intended to supplement, but not replace (i) the
KABA Bylaws and (ii) any applicable state and federal laws goveming conflict of interest
applicable to governmental nonprofit organizations. If any conflict exists between this Policy and
the KABA Bylaws, the Bylaws shall control.

Article 11
Definitions
1. Interested Person,

Any Board Member, Officer, or member of a committee with governing board-delegated
powers, who has a direct or indirect financial interest, as defined below, is an interested person.

2. Excess Benefit Transaction.

An excess benefit transaction is a transaction in which an economic benefit is provided to
an applicable tax-exempt organization, directly or indirectly, to or for the use of a disqualified
person, and the value of the economic benefit provided by the organization exceeds the value of
the consideration received by the organization.

3, Financial Interest,

a. An ownership or investment interest in any entity with which KABA has a
transaction or arrangement;

b. A compensation arrangement with KABA or with any entity or individual with

Page 1 of §



which KABA has a transaction or arrangement; or

C. A potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation arrangement
with, any entity or individual with which KABA is negotiating a transaction or
arrangement.

Compensation includes direct or indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors that are
not insubstantial.

A financial interest is not necessarily a conflict of interest. Under Article III, Section 2, a
person who has a financial interest may have a conflict of interest only if the disinterested Board
Members or designated committee determines that a conflict of interest exists.

Article I11
Procedures
1. Duty to Disclose.

In connection with any actual or possible conflict of interest, an interested person must
disclose the existence of the financial interest and be given the opportuniiy to disclose all
material facts to the Board Members and members of committees with governing board-
delegated powers considering the proposed transaction orarrangement.

2. Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists.

After disclosure of the financial interest and all material facts, and after any discussion
with the interested person, be/she shall leave the governing board or committee meeting while
the determination of a conflict of interest is discussed and voted upon. The remaining board or
committee members shall decide if a conflict of interestexists.

3. Procedure for Addressing the Conflict ofInterest.

a An interested person may make a presentation at the governing board or
committee meeting, but after the presentation, he/she shall leave the meeting during the
discussion of, and the vote on, the transaction or arrangement involving the possible
conflict of interest.

b. The chairperson of the governing board or committee shall, if appropriate, appoint
a disinterested person or committee to investigate alternatives to the proposed transaction
or arrangement.

G After exercising due diligence, the governing board or committee shall determine
whether KABA can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a more advantageous transaction or
arrangement from a person or entity that would not give rise to a conflict ofinterest.

Page 2 of 5



d If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably possible
under circumstances which would not produce a conflict of interest, the governing board
or committee shall determine by a majority vote of the disinterested Board Members
whether the transaction or arrangement is in KABA’s best interest, for its own benefit,
and whether it is fair and reasonable. In conformity with the above determination, it shall
make its decision as to whether to enter into the transaction or arrangement.

4. Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy.

a If the governing board or committee has reasonable cause to believe a Board
Member or Officer has failed to disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it shall
inform the member of the basis for such belief and afford the member an opportunity to
explain the alleged failure to disclose.

b. If, after hearing the member’s response and after making further investigation as
warranted by the circumstances, the governing board or committee determines the
member has failed to disclose an actual or possible conflict of interest, it shall take
appropriate disciplinary and corrective action.

Article IV

Records of Proceedings

The minutes of the governing board and all committees with board-delegated powers
shall contain:

a the names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have a
financial interest in connection with an actual or possible conflict of interest, the nature of
the financial interest, any action taken to determine whether a conflict of interest was
present, and the governing board’s or committee’s decision as to whether a conflict of
interest in fact existed.

b. the names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to
the transaction or arrangement, the content of the discussion, including nay alternatives to
the proposed transaction or arrangement, and a record of any votes taken in connection
with the proceedings.

Article V

Compensation

a. A voting member of the governing board who receives compensation, directly or
indirectly, from KABA for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that
member’s compensation.

Page 3 of 5



b. A voting member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation
matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from an organization for
services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that member’s compensation.

c. No voting member of the governing board or any committee whose jurisdiction
includes compensation matters and who received compensation, directly or indirectly,
from KABA, either individually or collectively, is prohibited from providing information
to any committee regarding compensation.

Article VI

Annual Statements

Each Board Member, Officer, and member of a committee with governing board-
delegated powers shall annually sign a statement which affirms that such person:

a. has received a copy of this Conflict of Interest Policy;

b. has read and understands the Policy;

c. has agreed to comply with the Policy; and

d. understands that KABA is a governmental nonprofit authority and in order to

maintain its federal tax exemption it must engage primarily in activities which
accomplish one or more of its tax-exempt purposes.

Article VII

Periodic Reviews

To ensure KABA operates in a manner consistent with its governmental nonprofit
purposes and does not engage in activities that could jeopardize its tax-exempt status, periodic
reviews shall be conducted. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, include the following
subjects:

a whether compensation arrangements and benefits are reasonable, based on
competent survey information and the result of arm’s length bargaining.

b. whether partnerships, joint ventures, and arrangements with management
organizations conform to KABA’s written policies are properly recorded, reflect
reasonable investment or payments for goods and services, further governmental
nonprofit purposes, and do not result in inurement, impermissible private benefit, or in an
excess benefit transaction.

Page 4 of 5



Article VIII

Use of Qutside Experts

When conducting the periodic reviews as provided under Article VII, KABA may, but
need not, use outside advisors. If outside experts are used, their use shall not relieve the
governing board of its responsibility for ensuring periodic reviews are conducted.

Page 5 of 5



Financial and Building
Reports



1 abey

¥5°158'08 L15°926°€T-
515808 L5°9IB'€T-
P5158°08 15°91B'€e-
16°9/6'€2- 15°9IB'€T-
eb'ee ev'ee

ev'ed £¥ee
00°000'¥2- 00°000°v2-
00°000've- 00°000'¥2-
L1'8Z8'F0L

asuejeg unowy

10

Auoyiny Buip|ing eary 00ZELWE(EY

aosuejeg Buipuz
8102/1€/T) Jo se eoueleq Jasibay
aoUElEg PRIES|D)
SuUoNDESURI] PSJES|D [BI0L
shparn pue spsedaq (2101

6Loc/LE/Z| usodaqg
way [ - s)ipa1n pue sysodag

SJUSWIAR puB S¥09Y7 |BI0]

S001 610Z/0LEL yoaun
wayp | - sjuawfed pue syoayo
suondesues| palea|n
asuejeq Buiuuibag

QWeN

wny aeq adA]

11€32g UOHENIDU0IY

Auoyny Buipjing ealy oozewejey|

610Z/1¢/Z) Buipu3 pouad “jueg ajnuedtap / Sunjoeyd - 0g0L

0Z1L0/10
WY 8P:LL



L abed

0005 00°05
000% 600s
00°05 000G
00°0G 00°08
o0oos 0008
00°0% 00°05
00’0
souejeg junowy

110

Auoyiny Buip|ing eaiy oczeweey

souejeq Bupuy
610Z/LE/Z ) J0 SB 2oueleq JeisiBoy
soue|eg pases|D
SUONOBSURI) paled|) |BjoL
sypann pue sysodaq (g0
(B:1:14 6L0Z/6LITL 398D
wiay L - sppai) pue syscdag

suonoesuest paleals
asuejeg Buiuuibag

awen

wnN aleq adAL

6102/1€/2) Buipu3 pouad ‘LGNS / Bunjaayd - 0503

lleJoq UOREI|IdU0DDY

Auoyiny Buipjing ealy oozewe|ey

0ZIL0L0
WY L¥:11



1:28 PM Kalamazoo Area Building Authority
01/07/20 Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis December 2019
Dec 19 Dec 18 % Change
Income
4010 - Building Permits 14,507.00 22,706.00 -36.1%
4015 - Special Permits 220.00 2,640.00 91.7%
4020 - Electrical Permits 6,029.00 5,115.00 17.9%
4030 - Mechanical Permits 10,772.00 6,576.20 63.8%
4040 - Plumbing Permits 3,639.00 2,723.00 33.6%
4090 - Ordinance Enforcement 55.00 1,430.00 -96.2%
4100 - Zening Administration 1,232.50 2,193.75 -42 8%
4600 - Investment Income 23.43 12.96 80.8%
Total Income 36,477.93 43,356.91 -15.9%
Expense
6400 - Depreciation Expense 0.00 §,071.90 -100.0%
6500 - Payroll Expenses
6501 - Salary - Building Officlal 8,437.36 8,125.00 3.8%
6503 - Salary - Building Inspector 6,750.00 6,500.00 3.9%
6505 - Wages - Administrative 8,502.06 7.955.77 6.9%
6510 + Payroll Taxes 1,354.40 1,341.83 0.9%
6511 - LTD/STD / AD&D / Life 371.46 370.22 0.3%
6512 - 401A (KABA) 1,065.21 1,049.41 1.5%
6513 - Health Insurance 4,4392.98 2,742.39 61.9%
Total 6500 - Payroll Expenses 30,92047 28,084.62 10.1%
6700 - Insurance - General 912.52 887.68 2.8%
6800 : Legal Fees 2,200.00 740.00 197.3%
6310 - Computer Support {External) 154.98 144.98 6.9%
6820 - Accounting Services 15.76 756.17 -97.9%
7100 - Office Equipment 559.29 51413 8.8%
7110 - Office Supplies 702.96 233.16 201.5%
7115 - Postage 165.00 0.00 100.0%
7130 - Resource Materials 181.95 -21.00 1,014.1%
7400 - Rent/Lease Expense 1,077.50 2,215.00 -51.4%
7500 - Utilities 305.63 302.58 1.0%
7550 - Trash Removal 45,24 39.08 15.8%
7600 - Security (Office) 44.99 44,99 0.0%
7610 - Telephone - Office 610.71 538.46 13.4%
7611 - Telephone - Cellular 124.59 148.68 -16.2%
7701 - At-Large/Alternate Board Member 150.00 150.00 0.0%
7711 - Contracted Electrical Inspector 3,330.00 3,165.00 52%
7712 - Contracted Mechanical Inspector 4,930.00 3,275.60 50.5%
7713 - Contracted Plumbing Inspector 3,240.00 1,350.00 140.0%
7714 - Contracted Ord Enforcement 0.00 202.50 -100.0%
7715 - Contracted Zoning Administrator 945.00 1,175.00 -19.6%
7800 - Mileage Reimbursement 1,015.58 72377 40.3%
7920 - Capital Outlay 2,337.76 0.00 100.0%
7999 - Misc Expense 0.00 110.28 -100.0%
Total Expense 53,979.92 52,852.58 2.1%
Net Income -17,501.99 -9,495.67 -34.3%




L oBeg

%0°TZL 98796082 LLB59°TL 6965P'SL %ZTE- ZT'665 6£°825'8L- [CWr AN awoou| 12N
%6'EZ 60°26¥'8 oF'B0S'GE $5'500'vY %GL L5e50'e £6°4Z8°0F PLLBSEY asuadx3 |ejoL
%000k 054 os'L 000 %O00L- 8T0LL- 000 -rA s asuadx3 2SI - 6662
%00 oo'o 000 c0'0 %00 000 ac'o 000 fepng lendes - 02s2
%0'0 oo'o 000 00’0 %0001 00'S5 0c'o 00'5S asuadyxg Bumnely - oles
%09 ¥r'082 99'609 0£°068 %l BP'ESC 04685 BLEG8 JuswssInguiay abea|in - 008
%0 00k c0'08L'2 000 00'08L'Z %0001 00599 000 06599 Jojensiuwpy Bujuoz pajoenuog - sLLL
%0°004 00’18 000 00'Le %0004 05’22 00’0 0529 WSSOI PIO PRNIRIUOD - FLLL
%499 00'0E9 00'SKe 00'545'L %9 LG 00'558- oo'ser’t 00'0E 1030adsu) Buiguinid pe)veiuoD - ELLL
%BE'THL 00052 00'008' s 00058t %SG 00°0E2- 00082 oo0aL'e 10308dsu |esueyDY PAIPRNUOD - ZLLL
%9'LL ocorL'L DO0Er'Y 000LL'Y ST 00'$22 00'008'L 00'520'2 ioyzadsu| [eIL]ID[T PAJIENUOT - LLLL
%00 oo 00’0 000 %0°0 00’0 000 ’ 000 laquialy pieoq ajewsiyebie iy - 1022
%IGL- 95'82- 8OOV Z5iLL %B'85- recE BO'okL rZ'08 e - sucydeisl - LL9L
%0'2 8oL 29085 OL'bvE %Ll £0'9 96°425 66'EES YO - dUOYLIDL - OFSL
%00 000 -3 44 %24 %00 oo'o 66’k 65'F (so1)0) fyunseg - 009L
%Z ¥l BLY SLEE sy %0'9L 9e's IGEE 98'8t leAoLUSY UYSeL] - 05SL
%0'8 69°GE 8L vl Fras-1d %36 i9'8E- ze'sae S6'65E SO - 00SL
%00 000 000 000 %0001 ¥6'SZ 00’0 ¥6'GC 2O - Siedey °g aoUBLAUIEN - 0STL
Yol 09 1901~ 00'SLk 98’89 %9'CL L6'FT G8'ERL S8'80C TEAQRUISY MOUS/AIED UMET - 0ZVL
%00 000 006L2'2 00'612'T %00 000 cosiz'e oSz asuadx3 aseauay - 00FL
%0004 00’1z 000 00°'12- %0'00+ orELL co'e oF'ELL S[EUBIEW SWNOSIY - OELL
%00 000 000 co'o %i'Z 0LEY 00'8r0'2 0£7180'2 {asempos aiempier) 1aIndwos - 211
%0"00L- 00'002- 00002 000 %000k jslek=l"]" co'o 00's9k abeisod - §LLL
%691 £8'6 2088 06'29 %99 09EPL- 85°€52 86'604 sallddns 820 - 0bLL
%90 el £OPEY gL LEY %06 WEr 65°08F al'iey awdinbg 2240 - 0012
%E'L5 C0'¥8L- 00’98z 00'ZZL %E'LLT'L BS'691 0oy :i=y <1 senIeg Bununcaay - 0289
%Z L9 oL'6Ze- 80FLE 86'F¥L %0l DL£59 88'602'9 86'296'9 (leweapa) poddng tandwe?) - 0L89
%0'LZ 00°0rE 00'0Z8'L 00'096'L %4'801L 060k, 00'089 00'0ZY'L sead jefe] - 0029
%0 £6'e Z9'6HL BOZLL %5'565 60°€69 6566 89'269 le18UBY) - aDLRINSYL - BOLY
%LE ¥5°989 05'¥8E'Ce ¥0'LL0'EZ %TE feigte] £0'LTLLE 1S°96L'1T sasuadxg jjoshed - 0099 €101
%00 000 00’0 000 %00 000 000 000 wawleday Jawdojdwauy - pLg9
%EET 16°908 96¥LLE 68’189 %9PT LOZEE'L SK6LP'G LP1S5L'9 2JuRINSU| YIE3H - $1§9
%F'0 0 ZF'850°H BFEI0') %40 169 BE0SO'L 987250 (vavy} vioy - 2159
%00 000 ZT0Lg ZT04L8 %00 000 ZZ0LE ZE0LE N/ IBAYV/ALS /AL - LIS
%ZTQ- SE- BOEPE'L YO0Pe' | %0 ¥l Lg'LEE' ) SBEEE't saxe |joifed - 0LS9
%EE 20821 6.'981'9 19PaE's %t Z- T804 SRSy L9807 aanensunpy - sabep - cos9
%00 000 00°000's 00'000°G %L 00'052- 00DsSL'e 00005’ ng - Aefeg - £o59
%00 o0 0005Z'9 00052'9 LG 0gCLE- 05'£89'% 00'6LE'r e Buiping - etes - 1059
sasuadx] jjoiked - pose
%0001 00°GL8 000 00'645 %00 00’0 000 00’0 suonduosqng 9 sang - 05t
%00 000 000 000 %00 000 000 coo asuadx3 vonewaldag - 00¥9
%0004~ 000s- 0008 00'0 %00 000 000 000 S84 yued - 0029
%00 000 000 000 %000} 89Sl 000 :3-T Bunaxyey pue BUISIBADY - 0109
asuadxy
%Z'094 S8'665'9¢ 62682 YT SPP'es %011 8C¥SP'T yzes2'eT £S'ESL'VE awoau| 2101
%00 000 000 000 %00 000 000 000 awoau ¥I0d - 01LF
%0 62~ s5'e- 6.8 ¥Z'9 %0° 25~ aL'al- PeLL 89°L BWODU| JUBLASIAU] - 00SP
%000k 05'era'e 000 05°Z¥9'2 %0004 SZEE L 000 ST'OET L uonensuwpy Buwoz - goLr
%0001 000+ 00’0 00'0LL %0004 falegTcd 000 00'5&F JUAWADI0HT FIUBUIRIO - 06OV
%0 12" 00’508 . 00'Fes'e 00'820°¢ %Sl 00982 00'9:6'L 00'Z9z' spuuag Buiquinid - oroy
%TE 05'€62- 00'ze9'e 05'898'2 %Z 0L~ 08294~ oF'8rs'L 09'08.'9 SHULD |edIURYd3Y - 0S0F
% GP 00'965'2 00'652's 00'259'L %0'9 oo'esr't 00'PEL'Y 00029's SHuuag |2a1499(3 - 0Z0V
%O 08'240'L- 08'Z62'L 00’0z %E° 19 000EZ 0068 00509 suuuad [e1nads - §1L0v
%9'E68 oo'zza'se 00'98L'E 00'BLLLE %l'e 00'105- 00'8ve'e 00'Lbi'L spuueg Buippng - oLor
awosu]
abueyy % abueyn § 8L 9o4 [JN:EX abueyq o, abueyn ¢ g} uer &) uer
6102 Jaquiaoseq ybnoly) Aaenuep siseg [eRsaay
uosLiedwon) Jea) A3ld SSOT R oI ozioiio

Auoyiny Buipping ealy cozewejey| e 621



Z abieg

%b'B8- 0£'656'C- ZL6SL'EY P YeT's %9'Z8 157160°GL 879281 98'04Le- awoou| 32N
%Ll ZEUTE'T LEZPY L forasiE %6'L L8 zT9L'el SSF09'vr asuadxg oL
%0004 or'es 0F'es- 00'0 %00 0co 000 coo asuadx3 IS - 6662
%00 00’0 coo 000 %00 oo 000 co0 Aepng |ended - 0z62
%00 000 000 co'o %00 000 oco 000 asuadxgy Bumes] - lgL
%E 96 LY 0506k 22'296 %L QL S5F6E LTS 9L LLG awesanquiay abeal - 00BL
%0°00L co'see’L 000 00'SEE'L %0001 00'seL 00 00'5TL lojensiupy Buiuoz payoenuoy - SLLL
%0°00L 05'20Z 000 05'20Z %00 o000 000 00 JUSLLADIOT RIQ PAIR[UOS - FLLL
%6251 00°0SE'L 00'558 00'S0ZT %20l oo'osl 00599'L Q0'SPE'L 10303dsu) Buiquinig payaenuo) - €142
%60 08'8z- 05EEL'e Q0'S0L'E %t St or'gLs'h 000EE'E orere'y Jojoadsuy [esiueydal paloRIue] - ZLLL
%E'BS faleg=ts s 000EP'Z Q0'SIBY %E6Z- 00°062'}- CLE'Y 000ZL'E 10129dsu| (2214031 PAIDRAUCD - LLLL
%00 oc'e 000 oco %606 00054~ 00'628 00s. Jequisy pieog alewaly/ebie1y - 102L
%26 el 95Ol SL'EEL %6 L 04’62 ZoorL TG LLL TRIn|8g - BUGYPB[EL - LISL
%E'E 0z'LL 28525 ZLEYS %8’} LB ZOPES ELEYS S0 - suoydaga) - 0boL
%00 000 68y 66t %00 000 667k 667Y (#2110) Anoss - 6092
%9'ST ros ELEE o4l %6k 8 £REE 6168 leAoLISY Ysell - 055L
Y%L'e o8- 8lL'SYT FLiET %0'G ¥Z'GlL 6’20t ELLLE ! N - 00SL
%00 000 00C 000 %0'0 000 000 000 82140 - sitedey 'p soUBLBIUIBY - 0SFL
%0'00% oo'Le oo'Le [#ledrad %000k 00'Zes 00’0 oo'Zee [BACLUBY MOUSBIED UMET - OZPL
%00 000 00512 005LET %00 oo'o 005122 0062’2 asuadx3 aseaqpusy - 00FL
%0001 [sle)g=1:] 0.0 )e] oosg %0'00L 0g'9Z o9z~ 00Q SeUNBW 2UNOSIY - OTLL
%00 000 000 000 %00 o000 000 00D (2seMgj05/20eMmpIeH) Jaindwo) - gZLL
%0004 00'0Z2 000 00022 %00 00’0 00C alel abesod - GLLL
T B vl 09 0EEZL 9l'ze %O'rIL F{RNE-] SULIE $4228 saiddng 2330 - QLLL
%00 000 gL’iEk Bl iEr %62 S0'0F- Z1'905 £0°99F wawdinb3 2310 - 00LL
%b'G- 00'8il- 00PLE'E DO'9EL'E L rads 05'185- 009LL'Y 05'¥EL ' se31Aa8 Bupunoday - 0zg
%00 000 6L 86 PhL %52 i 00211 86192 86'biL {lewyxa) poddng Jandwos - gLg9
Wb 6L~ 00°08%'2- 00'004'E 000¥9 %0'001- 00092 00092 000 saeg 16627 - gog9
%07 PEEL- £9GLL B9 0L %6¢ 96'22- E5GLL £9°189 leJoUagy - a0uURINSU| - D09
%6 67959 PrEOF'ET EL6S0'ET %T '€ 99'9ZL rOCEr'TE 0£°09L'EZ sasuadxy [jelied - 0059 IRIOL
%00 000 00’0 00’0 %00 oo'o 0oe 000 juawdeday juawhojdwaun - vi59
%EET 16°908 86'¥LLZ 62'189'C %EEE 16908 BETLLT 62'189'C asuwINSU[ WeaH - £159
%Z'0 7T T¥090'L 62'Z90'L %80 1Z6 89'850'} 68°290°L (vavy) vior - ZLES
%00 000 zz0.8 zZ0LE %00 000 zTOLE TT0iE 2)1/Q%9AY /ALS /AL - LLSS
%E0- B 9EPrE L 18'6EE'L %QE (743 1T60F' L £0Zee’t saxe] jloshed - 0LS9
%¥'E oF'I5L 9rENT'S 98'reE'9 %EY BL€9Z BbFLL'D 1TBEY'9 aAgeERSIUILPY - SaBRM - G059
%00 000 00'00c's 00°000's %00 000 00'000's 00'000's 1opvedsu) Buipiing - Aejes - £0g9
%00 000 0005Z'e 000529 %00 0070 0052’9 ao'ose'e le1210 Buipiing - Aieles - 1059
sesuadxy josied - poso
%00 000 000 000 %00 oo 000 000 sucndussans g seng - 05F9
%00 000 000 000 %00 00’0 000 000 asuadx3 uoneisadaq - 00Fo
%00 000 000 000 %00 00’0 000 000 $534 4URg . 0OZY
%0001~ oL ZLL'}- OLZLL'L 000 %00 00'0 000 ooC Bunayien pue BuisiuaApY - 0109
asuadxg
%E'GH £6'800" - £9'709'06 SO'ERS'6Y %GZ9 ¥ZEEB'SE G006'GT 69'EEY LY awoau| [ejoL
%00 000 000 000 %0001~ 286 STBE 000 awosu vIOd - 01LF
%9TZ £9Z £ULL 008 %Z'0 z00 VB 616 WO JUILSIAY] - QO9F
%OTOL STLPY'L 000 ST %0001 05208 000 0S'E05 ueRessIMPY BULZ - 00LY
%0'00L 0001 000 00°0LL %00 000 000 00’0 JUBWIDI0HT IDUBUIRIO - DEOY
%9'LTI 00210 001872 00'86%'S %8vLT 00'500' 00BSF'L 00ror's sHuied Suiquinid - 0F0Y
%8G aF'26Z°L 00'v6L'g o L6P'B %P'EL ao'8Lr'e 00BEL'Y 00'ALZ'8 shuudg JE3IURYIIN - 0E0L
%ELS 00'€60'S 002209 00°0Z1L's %E 'SP oCrIeT 00'288'S 00'155'8 SHad 22313 - 0Z0Y
%008~ 000t 00088 00Oy %G 00'0kL- 00°086'L 00'048't shuuad |e1ads - S1oF
%L BY- 00'SZL'6 COB00'EL 00'v8z'es Y%Ll 00 LEP'S 00688 L1 00089k sHuuad Bulpng - QLOY
awoau|
abueyg v, abueyn $ 8l ady 6l sy abueyd % abueys s 81 el 6L el
6102 Jequiedag ybnoayy Lenuep siseg |eniaoy
uosuedwon Jea) Aald S0 9 11Joid ozieio

Kuoyny Buipying ealy oozeweey Wd 62:1



¢ obeq

%L0E8 W'ZZL 6V 1S'ELE'S 68°80Z'cY %Ll L0°LL5' LY B9POL'ET- 2L'998'2L alwoou) BN
%G'9Z 98'95¢'6 11'9%9'ce i6eeTL'sy %t LL BO'ESH'S SL0S8 L £8'20£'eS asuadx3 (ep0L
%0°0 000 000 000 %00 000 000 00 asuadxa sy - 6662
%00 000 000 000 %00 [ols)s] 000 oo Aepng rended - 0z62
%00 000 000 000 %00 000 000 000 asuadx3 Buiuiel] - 0L8L
%L BS 26°00t SH'LLG FELOL %G 0L €818 (374 [k A Wawasinquiay abealiy - 0082
%0'00L 00'5€6 000 00'5€6 %0004 00'020'L 000 00°020°L Joyensiunupy Buluoz pajsequod - grLL
%00 000 000 oc'e %0004 00'i5e 000 00'1SE JUBWAINUT PIQ PAIBRUOD - PRLL
%1 'BEL 06'S0E"L 00'SHE 000SE'E %166 00'6LS' L 00065 00'594'E Joyoadsu) Bugungg pajoenuod - £1LL
%6 'GE oC'0Re 0008’2 o0cee's %t L8 00'086°L 00'682' 00°6¥Z'Y 10)08dSu| [2IIURYSIN PAIORIUOD - THIL
%L'28 006261 00'502'2 W'sZL'Y %058 00'6TL'L 0o0seL'e 00°098'F 10)sadsu) jeaL0e]3 pajdenuod - LLLL
F YA 00009 00528 oo'sze %00 000 000 [2lss] SN Pareg ewyebie Ty - 1oL
%E 6 rEL- zZoerl SLEEL %2 6 LrEL- ooyl SLEEL AeIn|2Y - duoydalel . L1es
%0'Z oL 90625 8F'6ES %YL 8E'8 95°EES 16°19G 230 - suoudajey, - 019L
%00 a0 56t 86'FY %00 000 B6'rF [ (3910} HuUneS - 009L
%0'gl s¥'e LL'SE 082y %O L9 0458 ey |eAGLIBY YSel) - 0SSL
%LLL sZTEL oLl 6E'E61 %ETL 0£'0Z 9,891 or'eaL ssmIRN - 0052
%00 000 000 000 %00 000 00 000 2010 - siteday g asusuAUIEY - 0GYL
%00 00 [l ] 008 %00 000 00v8 00'v8 IBAGLUIDY MOUS/BIED UMET - OZPL
%00 Q00 005LET oosie'e %00 000 006LET 005LZ'T asuadx3 aseauay - 0OYL
%LGe- oo L 00501~ o09rL- %G ES CE'LZL- 0g'sze 0L°€0L S|eUD)BN ADINOSDY - 0ELL
%Q0 000 ao'o [als)s] %O'0 ooo sls)s} 000 {asemyog/aiempiey) sapndwiod - SZLL
%Z 92" 09’84 09'6Z2 00551 %00 000 000 000 abeisod - GLLL
%EZLL 96'8LL SZ'BSH 12'9EE %0001~ [eogdba 0E¥LZ 000 salddng asj0 - oLLL
%6'01- G6'L8 LLL08 9.'612 %00 000 gLiey gliLy wawdinbg 2010 - 0042
%0'6LL G619 00'125 SLOvL'L %EEE- 002 00’1z 00'FL saduag Bununooay - ozge
%P 0LE 00'05F 86'FFL 86766 Yl 0024~ 86'1L9Z 85 PrL {lew23xg) poddng sandwoy - pLeg
%'VES 00'09%' 0008 00°026'C %L 00°0b0'Z- 00'0F9' 00009 saa4 jeBa - pog9
%80 s0'9 £0'GiL 69'12L %60 109 LSGLL P12 [ei3Uag - asURINSU[ « 0029
%0'C 1589 L9ELP'ZZ 8'8L0'€T %E'Z BY'ES/ ST LEE'TE SLFEL'EE sosuadx3 |josfed - 0049 IBj0L
%00 o0 000 000 %00 00’0 000 000 wawdeday Jawholdwaun - F159
%E'ET 16905 WELLE 62'1BS'T %8B L&' LG 26¥3Z'T BR'9EL'E BouURINSY| YRR - £159
%S0 8e's 29250't 00'EI0'L %50 08¢ 6E°295'L 6L'685'L (wawil vior - Z1s9
%00 000 T2 0iE zT0LE %J°0 000 ZTOLE ZT0LE 8/ QRAV 1 ALS /LT - LSS
%E'E- VLG ¥E'E0F'L £CLSE'L %10 5 AT L60L0'Z saxel |loifed - 0159
%ZTE £L66) 58'95L'9 85'95£'8 %CE 0£'462 ¥Z'15Z'6 $SOVS'E SANeNSIIIPY - sabem, - 5059
%00 oG 00000'S 00'000's %00 000 00005'2 000052 so3aadsu) Buip)ing - Auees - £059
%00 000 00°0SZ'9 £0'052's %00 00 00'GLE'S 00'6LE'6 e Bupping - Arejes - 1059
momcwnxw __O._ham. - D059
%00 000 000 000 %00 000 00’0 000 suonduasqng ¢ sang - 059
%00 000 000 000 %00 oo'o 00’0 000 asuadx3 uenesasdaq - 00vs
%000k e 000 voe %00 00’0 000 000 5394 NUEg - 00Z9
%0'00 4 E0'66E 000 £0'66E %00 000 00’0 000 Bupaxpey pue Buisiueapy - 0109
asuadxy
%6961 ZE'6L5'8S P52GL'82 98°LEE'ER %L FEL SLEZ0 LY S09kL'rT VZE0L 1L awoau| o]
%00 000 00C 000 %00 00’0 [so]s} 000 WO YIOd - OLLF
%0'S 80 7591 9g'llL %P or'g- 0B 99°0} BODU| JUBLYSIAU - 009F
%0004 0S'2L2'4 000 0S°TLE'L %0001 S5BEF' L 0o SEEEY'L uonensIILpY BUOZ - 00LY
%0'00} 000EE 000 00°0LE %0'00L 00'0Obt co0 00°0t WALUB2IOJUT FDUBLIPIO - 0BOY
%5981 00'569'e 00'L8s't 00'9L9'G %989 002562 0020y 00'veZ'L spuad Buiquinid - 0o
%4'88 00'BYE'Y 00°2eT'L 00'08r" L L %S AL 00°92K'L COELL'R 00'665'6 SHUWIR [R2IUBYIBY - OLOY
%¥ LEL 00'90E'S 00/€0'% DO'EVE'S %G'GTL 00°2LZ'L 00'05L's 00°£86'2L SHULa4 [E249313 - 0Z0F
%88t 00'691L ooces 006+0'L %Z ' 00°0EE 00’542 00°S¥0't Siiad [e1oeds - 5Lob
%l 6.2 00'Z95'Er 0050951 00'89L'85 %'6E9 00'Z9L'EE 00'£81°S 00'bsE'8E shuwad Buipjing - oLo¥
oyl
abueyo v abueys § g1 unr §) unp abueys % abueys § 81 Aew &1 Aely

siseq [ensaoy

0Z/LO/VO

6102 J2quwasag yBnoayy Arenuep

uosnedwon Jeap Aald SSOT R I4odd
Aioyiny Buipping ealy cozewe|ey Wd 62:1



¥ abed

%L G0F [41:12 o4 ZLeT's- o 989°LL %rgL 917158 12'986'LL I67LE8'SH 2woou| 312N
%ELL £8'669'9 68PTL'GE LIRS %Z'9 V9T 66'EPL'ZP v 1es'sy asuadxq |10l
%00 000 000 000 %00 000 000 000 astiedx3 ISIl - 6652
%00 000 000 000 %00 000 000 [+)s] fepng rendes - oZ6.L
%0001~ 00648 00'6LE 00’0 %00 ool 000 000 esuadxg Buwied] - oLgl
%9TT wiie LLGE6 vz pLL %E'1L9 ErA 2i 06'CLL oLgrZ' L BasINguIay s5esHN - 008L
%0°001 00'0E6 0o0 00’086 %000 005LLL jalelv} 00'SLL'L iojensiuupy Buuez payoenuel - gLLL
%S GL'18e 54918 co'sel %0001~ 05621 05641 000 JUSUDIONT PIO PRIIRIJUOD - PLLL
%L ¥S CO'SOE'L 00'682'2 00'088'E %869 00'0SE"t 00'%es’L 00'582'E Joj0adsu) Bulgquinid pajoeiuod - £112
%6'98 00'S86'L 00'582'2 00'06Z'% %TPL 00°08€ 00089'T 00'090°€ 1oj0adsu| [e2IURYIIW PARRAUOD - ZRLL
%LNZ 00596 00'S5F Y 00'0Lr's %Ltk 00°08s'L 00'048'E 00'0SE'S 10129dsu) [22UID3IT PAISRAUOD - LIAL
%00 000 00 000 %00 000 000 000 Jaquialy paeog ajewwa)yabieay - 1oL
VYW [ [E=Y-T]1 BZ'GEL %Ll £ELL- LoorL 8zeel Jenjag - auoydaj@l - LL9L
%6 L 8E0k Z9SES 00°9¥5 %0 SLH BIOYS 686G asIyQ - suoydsR | - 0L9L
%o'o oo 667Y 66t %00 000 [ 344 66'7¥ (82440 Anaes - 009L
%8rl Si'g 6.8 ¥S b %E'SZ 3c'6 Sl £5°0F leAOMIBY Ysed] - 0§52
%B'9 [E-X-I0 L0202 859l %9'04- P0g- £8'292 98252 somInN - 0052
%0°00L oroze 000 op'ozZe %00 00’0 000 000 2990 - suedey *g aoUBNAUIEY - 057L
%E'LL 056 008 05€6 %306 00's6 00504 00002 [EACWIRY MOUS/BIED UMET - OZTL
%00 000 006LE'T oosie’s %00 000 005LZ' 00sLET asuadx3 asesudy - 00vL
%L 159 0L'€Le Q0 QLee %O LECE- oligl- 0479 00501~ FEUSIBN @24N0S8Y - OELL
%00 000 000 000 %00 )] 000 000 {aiemyogasempie} Jandwos - 5TLL
%00L 00'G 00'0GL 00'551 %00 000 000 000 abeisod - GLLL
%T'LLL a1'88 25 or'esL %L 'TE- 80'vL- 16922 £'ZG1 sanddng 32130 - OLLL
%00 00’0 gllep Bl ey %00 coo aLier gl ick uawdinbg 32130 - 00LL
%00 00’0 00y 0oL %00 ()] 00t 00'FL sasuag Bununosoy - 9zgs
%69 000k 6L BEPSL %088 00062t 96°Prb'S 26759 (1ewayxa) poddng sondwe? - gL89
%l ipL 00'005 00°0FE 00°0r8 %L1 co'oez'L 000ze 00°004'2 saad |2ba - 0039
%9'LT S0'e5L £9'GLL 69'1LL8 %60 09 95'SLL £9'122 [e42U3E) - ADURINSY| - DL
%1 21208 9G'85E'T LEIG0'E %L'E £2'¢89 PLELE'2Z LE'990'E2 sasuadx3y |oMMed - 0059 1oL
%00 000 000 op0 %00 000 o000 o000 wawieday wawiojdwaun - pL59
%E'ET 16’805 SBFLLE 6'185'2 %E'ET 168805 BrLLT 60'188'C aouensy| YIEIH - £1S9
%S0 3282 0L'850°} 66'C90'L %0 'y 98601 ¥Z'€90'L (vawi} vior - ZKse
%00 0o ZZ0.LE TT0LE %00 00'0 T 0LE zZz'048 247/ 090Y /ALS /L1 - LLSE
%l 0~ 1L PELEE L £0°0bE'L %Z'0 86'L- LEZHE' L ceore’L saxe] [loshed - 0159
%L'E pLLEL PEPYL'D 85'95E'g %0 € eg'eeL 198L1' 69'09'9 AReASIIWPY - SeBEM - G059
%00 000 00000 00°00C's %00 00'0 00°C00's 00°000's 10302dsu) Buip|ing - Aejes - £0s59
%00 000 00052'9 00°052'¢ %00 000 006sZ'e 00°05Z'9 B9340 Bup|ing - Asejes - L0S9
wowcwn_xm_ __Oh.am& - 0059
%00 000 000 000 %00 000 000 000 suonduasqng g seng - 059
%00 000 000 000 %0°0 000 000 000 asuadx3 uone|aaudsq - 009
%00 000 000 000 %0'00£"0L 6262 sz0 0092 Saa4 yueg - 0ozY
%0001 £5'952 000 £5°952 %TEEL'L 16118 0o'sL L6628 Bunaiely pue GUISIISADY - 0109
asuadxg
%E L6 S8'5LL'0E L1'6B6'TE ZLILL'ED %8 8585k 08°0EL'PS BE'BZZ'65 WOV [BIO0L
%00 000 oo 000 %00 00’0 00’0 000 WO VIO - 0LLY
%RLbL 0zeL 1941 g0 %508 82°G1 co'Ll 6£°2¢ BWODU JUBLUSOAU] - 0SS
%0004 SZ'OES'L [sls)s] SZ'9ES') %0001 00’080 000 00°090'2 uenensukupy Buuoz - 0oLy
%0°00}- 00'sgL- 00591 000 %00 000 000 000 UBWADI0IT SIUBIPIO - 060V
%9'SS 00'#0%'2 00'205'F 00°900'L %YTLL 00 P96 00’668y 00'E9E'S snuuad Buiguinid - opoY
%0°L6 00'1£6's 00'815'9 00'8¥P')L %6°'GZ 0T'¥TeT 08°2zZ1L'0l 00'2sL'2L SHUWIAL IEIIURYIAI - 0LOF
%2 b8 00'SEE'S 00°2€€'9 00'EL9'LL Y%L'6 00146 00'ZEL'0L 00'L9L'6 sHuLad 2312313 - 0Z0
%E ' 05264~ 05°Zre'L 00°50'} %002Z 00509 0062 00°088 syuUad [e1oeds - §10P
%a'GLE 00'BSL'GL 00°EL9'EL 00'LLE BT %491 00664 00°08L'6T CO'LBEPT siuuad buiplng - oLov
awiosu|
abueyy % afiueys 3 81 Bny 61 By abueyp % abueys ¢ gL Inp gL

siseq [eniooy

6102 Jequwaasg ybnoayy Aenuep

uosuedwon Jea) Adld SSO7 9 JJold 0zi010
Auoyiny Buipling ealy oozewejey Wd 6Z:1



¢ abeg

%5'692 $2'90Z's 09°LE6'L- PePLT'E % 66C Z'vEL'SY 68°056'0)- £6°CLTE awoou] 32N
%Lyl ZS'E6B'9 t LED'SY $6'bZ9'95 %8'8Z £4'B85' L1 Fagoi-r Ay g 0ZEra'LS asuadx3 |ejol
%00 000 000 00’0 %00 [sla)s] 000 000 asuadxy OSIN - 6662
%0°0 000 000 000 %00 000 000 000 AepnQ jepde) - 0Z6L
%00 000 000 000 %00 000 00¢ 000 asuadx3 Guuell - 0182
%6'6) PLBLL rP'S68 85°8L0'L %@L L FOS Sv'599 98’69t awasInquiay abeall - 6082
%0'00L o000LL'E 000 00'04L'L %0001 00092} 000 00'09z' L JorensIuNLpY BulloZ paidenuod - gL1L
%L e 05°20% SZT'6VL SLIPL %0001~ SL9L8- [FA-TE-] 000 JUBWAIOWT PI) PAIDROUSD - PLLL
%.'88 00°062'L 00'S5F' L 00'sKLE WEGOL 00°008'} 000LL'L 00CIS'E Jopadsul Buiquinid pajoeauod - £LLL
%802 00'058 00048y 00'025's %Z'iT 00082 00598'2 00'sr9'e J030adsu| [EDILEYIIW PAIIRAUOT - THLL
%6'ES 00'sB0'T 000:8'e 00'656's %S B 00'508'C 000Z8'e 00'629's Jopaadsu) (21923 PACNUOT - LLLL
%00 000 000 co0 %005 00'5L 00'CSh 006522 Jaquisy preog SjRWSiY/SBIeTIY - LOLL
%l Gh- 62°ET- 89BYL BE'GTL %06 ECEL- L98k) 8T'SEL Jen||a) - auoydajal - 1192
%TEL WwoL £Q'EES L8903 %0 L1 €488 LE'PES $S'E6S 8O - auoydajal - 0L9L
%00 o0oo [y 667F %0'0 000 58 i 66'vP (2130} Ajumaag - 0092
%IGL 09 ze'8g B8'tF %L'9L ¥zZ'e 64'8E £0'sk eAOLUDY USBIL - 0552
%99 SErh et 26082 %0°02- £6 8¢~ 88l 6 2FL samIBn - 0054
%0001 00054l 600 00°0SL'L %00 o' oc'o 000 201Q) - sHeday g aouBUBUIIBY - 052
%052 00'le- Co'rg Q0'ee %0'ST oo'lg QO0'v8 C0'S0L [BAOLLISY MOUSRIED UMET - 0ZTL
%00 000 60§LC'T 0o'siz'e %00 000 006127 00sIE2 asuadxy aseaguay - 00V
Yl 0ZveL ozZ'Lee- Q0 L9l %8'8C - QZgLe- og'8ece 00're- SleMAEW 3WNCSIY - 0ELL
%000 £ELEE 000 £2'LEE %00 000 000 000 (oemyogalempieH) sasndwog - §ZLL
%62 00'G- 00041 00'69L %00 000 000 )] abeysod - G112
%G'L9 zLpoL LLgSL £8'652 %. 881 62 iSL $E'ER £9°0v2 sanddng 200 - 0LLL
%00 000 gL e Sl Er %8 g~ PE6EZ 2L0LL ¥Z0L wewdinbz 2010 - 00LL
%0°188 oo'saL oo'Le 00’902 %00 fale)s] 54623 52’628 sa01M35 Bununoooy - ozge
%Lk SOl £C'ESL 86FSL %S98 26'866- 06'e5L'L 86'FSL {leweixg) poddng saindwoes - 019
%814 00°0Z0°L- coozy'L 00°00% %S 8LE 00098 0'0r8'L 000042 saad [efa . 0089
%EEL- PEOLL- 29'Zre pEOZL %60 80's 96°CHL ZOLZL [ef2us9) - 3oURINSY| . 00LG
%l S0'ALL'L 51'Z06'LE LZB0'eE %L'E 10659 1'688'2e ¥2'880'CT sasuadig |joifed - 0049 =10,
%00 000 000 o000 %00 000 000 o000 wawAdeday wawiodwaun - pLge
%6'bS 18698 80294 BR'9EL'Z %EET 16°90% 86VLL'T 621892 SouRINSU| YMEAH - £LS
%20 Te B8RS 99'Z85'L %¥F 0 [ 44 90'650'L Sb'E90'L (vawi} vioy - Z1so
%00 000 0L ZE0LE %00 000 Z20LE 2048 o)/ a%av/aLs/all - Lhs9
%20 86PL- FO'SL0E S0°000'2 %E0 SLE OLPGE"L SBA5E'L saxe| |IoJAed - OLSY
%P 10'6LE LE'58Z'E 9505’6 %0'E 65'€81 Lg08L'g CB'¥OE'S sAnenspy - sabepm - 5059
%00 000 00'005'2 00'005'2 %00 000 00°000's C0'000's Joyaadsu) Butpjing - Arefes - £059
%00 000 00'5.£'6 00'6.8'6 %00 00C 00'052's coosz's leyo Buipiing - Aeles - 1059
sasuadxy jjoiied . 0059
%00 000 000 000 %00 000 000 000 suondussgng g sang - 059
%00 000 000 00'Q %00 000 000 000 asuadx3 uone|saudaq - 00rg
%0°00L 5LZ 000 SL2 %0001~ 00'sZ- 0052 000 saad Yueg - 00Z9
%00 faloys 000 00 %0°0 000 000 000 Buyase pue GuISIIPARY - 0109
asuadxy
%9'sT 926612 £5'669'Lp 8566865 %8sk SG'FZE'GS 25'Z0E'62Z £L 298 awioou| jejoL
%00 000 00 00’0 %00 000 000 000 0] VIO - OLLY
%Y'coL 95T £8'7L 8E'6E %AET L 5564 2061 £9FE SLI0OU| JUBLLSIAY] - 009
%0°00+ 00'0gLL 000 00091t %0004 00'5L8'L 000 00'SLE'L uohegswwpy 6uluoz - poLt
%0001~ 0058t 00°GLE'L 000 %Z /8- 05 42L'L- 05Z62't 00591 JUBIDI0JUT ADURLIPIO - OEOY
%LELL QOEL0E 002042 006246 %E L0E 00°E9P's 00'9e8'e 00'860'8 SHuad Buiquinid - opor
%S'ST 0ZEL8'T 00°220' L 0Z'0K8'EL %G 05'€26'c 00'865"8 05'125'2L SHULIS |[EDUBYIIN - OE0F
%8BT 00 ZoF'E 00'%Z8'LL o0'zer's %L CET 00 LOL' L) 00°£00's 00'80L'9L Sjiuad |221923(3 - 0Z0V
%0'0ZT 00’508 0062 00’088 %LbL 000LL 00068 oc'col't sluLad [e1ads - SLoF
%b'St 00'LOE'S 00'Zar'oz 00'€8L'6T %ZELE 000226 00'$9L'0L 00'S8Y'pr sHuLad Buiping - oLov
awoau|
aBuey % abueyy § gL 10 61330 afueyy % abueyy ¢ 81 dag 61 dag
6107 1aquadaq ybnoay Lenuep SISEE eNIdoY
uosuedwo Jeap Adld $SOT § Joid Ozioie

Auoyny Buiping easy cozewejey wd 621



g abegq

%EPa- Z£°900'8- 195606~ 667105 LL- %029 L09PL's $5°859°CL- SPZLST BLOIU] I9N
%LE PELZLL 85'268'75 I6'646'ES %LET GL'GHL'e LPOLE'LE z9'669'o asuadx3 |ejoL
%0°00L- 8E0L1- BZOLL 000 %00 000 000 000 asuadx3 ISIN - 6662
%0001 9L LEE'T 000 QLULEET %00 000 000 000 AepnQ |euded . 0Z6L
%00 0c'0 000 000 %00 000 000 000 asuadxg Buuie] - pLgL
%EOY 18°162 LLETL BS'GLO'L %82T yo'zsL 8069 ziee awesinquuiay abeay - pogz
%I6L- 00'0EZ- 00GLL' L Jalek=) %6 00'st 00516 00°096 iojensiunupy Bujuoz pa1oenuod - GLLL
%0001~ 05'202- 05202 000 %0'G. 0S'LEL- 00'ESH 05°0F JUBWIIOT PIO PAIENUSD - FLLL
%0'0p L bBOCGR'L 00058'L 0O0OPE'E %0001 o0oEa'L 00°029'} 00orz'e 4oppadsu) BulquInd padERuOs - T1LL
%S08 OFFse’L 09'6L2'¢ DODEE' Y %0'0L C0'008'L 000L8'T 000LE'Y Ioydadsul feasueyoayy PASENUCD - TILL
%Z'G 00'g9L 00's9l'e 00'0ee'e %E'6L 00'0g'e 00'586'T 00'65€'S 10308dSU| [E2U}DD]] PIOBNUCD - LLLL
%00 000 00051 00051 %00 00’0 000 000 1aqual preog sewRyyeBeTIy - L0LL
%I~ B0¥2- 2OGYL B5¥ZL hIBL- oLtz 89'8FL 85021 Jenjjeg - auoydatal - LLgL
%igL sZ'EL r'eeS LLOLY %0'ph [e]-73 feie=o] $8°0.L9 SDUG - sucydad) - 9L9L
%00 000 65°pP 8 %00 000 66'bY 66'FF {92110) HUN2G - 0092
%8G 9l9 80'6E b rA 4 %Gl 209 £L'6E 516y [eACWSY USBAL - 0§6L
%0'L s0€ 95708 £9'50€ % LG pLpL- 0ZLLE S0'E9Z selnn - 0052
%00 000 000 000 %0001 179g 000 ige4 39L4Q - safeday 3 AOUBLLIUIEY - OSPL
%00 000 000 000 %G Z0P L LIZ °8'89 00'sve [EAOWISY MOUS/SIED UMET - OTFL
% LG 05'2€1'1- 00sLT'e 05°210') %00 000 oociz'z on'elze asuadx3 asea1ausy - 00FL
%l Lol SB'CLT o0’ SEI6L %L '609'6 QL LIE oge- o8 el S|eUdie 82UNosay - OCLL
%0'0 000 000 00'0 %P’ oL'0L ceely ov'gzy {atemyograiempieH) JIndwod - §TLL
%0004 00531 000 00's9l %0'0 000 (3] 000 abieisod - §L1L
%S'L0T 08'69F oL'eee S6'Z0L %SGt} 5'0r ({4 9949 senddng 22130 « 0LLL
%28 'Sk LIS 62’655 %b'L.2- S6'8LL- £1'955 gl ey wawdinb3 22150 - 0012
%6 L6 rors yiN: 7} SLGh %00 000 cobL oo 28 saosag Bununosay . 6Zg9
%69 cook 86l 86FSk %6'S 0004 86FFL 26'FSL {fewanx3) poddng Jaindwo - 0LgY
%E'LBL [ela)s=T 00'0rL 00°002'2 %9901 00°025'L 00'00v' L 00'026'2 saa4 |eBa7 - 0089
%B'T YT $9'/68 44T %6 LL ¥8'ETL 89'Z69 25918 [e4aUag) - aoueInsy| . OO
%L'0L SR'GER'T z9'v80'ee 1F'0Z6'08 %32 B'EES 10'548'22 95'800'CZ sasuadx3 ||01Aed - 0059 1ej0
%00 00'e 000 000 %00 000 000 000 wiawieday wawhojdwau - F159
%619 851691 88°ZrLT 86'6EF Y %E'ET 18°90% 86rLL'E 60°182'2 adueinsy| UiesH - £159
%G} 08’51 Ly B0 L 12°680°L %0 9L Z6'850'L £5°090'i (vawl) vior - 159
%ED 'L 22048 o' LLE %ED vzl TEOLE or'LLE a7/ a%AY 1 QLS /AL - LKSS
%60 i5EL £9°LYE' L OFPSE'L %0} 9ZEL- SrErE'l 0zZ'6Ze'L sexe] |1oihed - QLS9
%69 6Z'9PS 10°656'L 90'Z05'8 %Z'T B6'9EL 6rBLL'D 8r'GLE'e sapeNSLIPY - sobep - G059
%E'E 00052 00005'e 00052'9 %00 o000 000oD's G0'000°'S Iopadsy] Bupling - fejes - £0s9
%EE GETIE 00'¢zL'g 9E"LEY'R %00 000 00052'9 00'052's PO Buipping - Auejes - 1059
sasuadxg j[oifed - 0059
%00 00C 000 000 %00 000 000 000 suondudsqng g sang - 059
%0004~ 08'L20'e- 06°1L20°8 000 %00 000 000 oc'e ssuadx3 uonenaidaq - 00F9
%00 000 000 0o'o %00 000 00'se 00'sz s2a jueg - 00Z9
%00 0o o0 000 %00 000 000 oce Bugaxie pue BuisiusApy - 0L09
asuadxy
%E S 26'8/8'Y L6'95E'Sy £6' L7908 %@EL geLee'sL 8'L5TvT PLERLER L0 (EJ0)
%00 000 000 000 %00 000 000 oc'e AW VIO - DELY
%808 oL 9521 £F'ET %P 0Ll zLeT z6¢elL poLe QWODU] JUBUISSAL - 009
%82~ STLEE SLESL'T 05°26Z' 1 %0584 05" 24L'L 00051 05 42E'} uohensiunpy Suuoz - poLy
%Z 06" 00°6/8"t- 0G0er'L 00'se Yot L6~ o0'0eL't- 00'sZ8'L 00'591L JUSWAIoUT 3DURUIPID - 060
%Y 'EE 00'9L6 00'€TL'E 00'BESE %G LLL 00'er6'2 00°L99't 00'603'% spunag Buiquinid - OFoY
%E'ED 03GEL'Y 02'9/5'g 00°ZLL0L %84S 00'ees'e 00'89L'9 V0'%EL'S SHULIBd [EJUEYDSN - 0E0Y
%E'LL 00'¥LE 00'GLL'S 00'620'S %S9k 00'9EL'T 00'¥Re'S 00cze'e s)jLad B9 - 070K
%l 16 000z 2- 00'0rS'Z 00022 %l LG 00°088- 000F5't 00'099 snuad [erads - 5Lop
%1'9g- 00’651 g 00'904'2Z 00°2108'L %BGh L 00'BL0'0L 00CLE'9 00'886'91 SHuued Buping - oLov
AWV
abueyqg o, abueyn § g1 29 61 290 abiveyn v, abuey) ¢ g1 AN 6L AON
6107 Joqueoseq ybnoay) Lenuer siseg |eniasy
uosnedwog Jeap Adid SSOT ? 1Joid ozizano

Auoyny Buipying ealy oozewe|ey Wd 62:1



£ abey

60°889°65-

8£°600°501

%6'GLT LV I69'PaL awoou| 19N
% el 65'0E0'99 bSGLL 08 0L'80Z'S.L5 asuadx3 |ejoy
%E'LLT oS bLL- 8E'¥D 8Z°0L1- asuadx3 IS - 6661
%0°004 9.L'LE8°T 000 9L LEE'E fepng endes . 0z6.L
%E'58- 00'0ZE- 00'G64€ 00'ss asuadxg Buineay . gL8L
%0°05 9TYL'y $6'2£82'8 95°0EF T wawasmguiay sbesiw - 0ogL
%l 86 000" kL 000802 00'09L'€L lojensiuipy Buoz pajoenuod - §LAL
%l G 05'€08'1- $.726'T SZ8L0'L Jusuadicug PIQ PIITRNUOY - pLLL
%G bL 00'CyP'El 00O L) 00°08¢ L€ lojoadsuy Guiquinig PaIdenuoy - £1LL
%62 00'EZP'PL O ¥Z9EE O LP0 'Sy J0)sadsuy jesjueyson PAIJRNUOD - ZLLL
%S b 00'G29'01L 00'6LE'4E 00°050'¥S 10300dsu| [E2U}D91T PEIDRNUOD - bhLL
%t Ge 00'6LT L 00086 00'6.9 Jsquialy preog ey PBIeT-IY - LOLL
%l G- 26'v6T- S99/t £5° LIPS re[red - auoydslal, - 1192
%S Z0'GYE 2007’9 PZ'SPLD amyQ - auoydajay - 0L9L
%00 000 B8'GES 88'6ES (921330} Ayunaeg - 0092
%E Lk £0'92 BE'REY LS leAoway ysel] - 0552
%Z 0" [2 =4 55'802'¢ £TE0Z'E n - 00SL
%0'00L 18228 000 19225 821130 - sajeday § aoueUAUIEY - 0SFL
Yl L9 PA- 1] SL'CL8 ZE LT L IEACLUSY MOUG/aIE]y UMET « OZTL
%E 0S°LEL'L- 00°085'92 05'err'se asuadx3 aseaquey - O0KL
%0'ZZTH'L SP'azs oLz GG'GLG SIRLIIEN B2INCSOY - OFLL
%E'GH £0'168 08992 £€°/88'2 (asemyog/aiempae} JaInduwroy - §ZLL
%S 'CF oF'Log 05'erL 00'Sk0'L abe1sod - §L1L
%4 G5 z6'L90°)L 65'816'L 15'986'2 saddng sMUG - OLbL
%91~ 8528 BE'S5L'9 08'2LA'e wswdinb3 840 - 00EL
%SG 85'969 Z6'085'0L £EFE8'6 sa01Meg BURUNOADY - 0Zg9
% e LTS £0'689'7L 94195’ {lewayx3) poddng sndwoes - Lg9
%96r 000882 00°0Z8'sL 00002 'ce ssag [efaT - 0029
%Z'6 26092 [ i A] PEBO0'6 leJauag - asueansu) - 0LY
%LE 09'858'0L 1Z'£29'262 L8'SZS'E0E sasuadx3 ||oshed - 0059 [RIOL
%00 000 oo 009 wawieday awiodwaun - prse
%82 09'905'8 SLEL9'6T SE'0ZL'8e 23URINSY| YIIESH - £1SY
%S0 5202 L9irL'EL 6 LLB'EL (vawi} vioy - 2159
%10 4 Yo' ZVShE'E 8417/ ARAY/ QLS /AL - LS9
%L 0 AN 88'LiG'21L Ob'SSk'LL sexe] |joJhed - QLS9
%0 59'L¥P'T L27TEP'O8 99'v.B'Z8 sApensuwpy - sabep - G059
%00 000 D0'0SE'GY 00'06Z'59 Jopadsu) Bulp(ing - fuees - 059
%00 PLO- 05'296'L8 9E'29s' L8 It Buipping - lejes - Los9
@@m:m.uxm =2>m1 - QD59
%0°0C1 00°6.6 00'¢ 00528 suondudsqng g sang - 05rY
%0001 06°LL0'8- 06'140'8 00C ssuadxg uonedadaq - 009
Yol i 05~ ST00L TRl s34 yueg . pOZO
%8 i~ B9ELL- oLseL’L L La0'L Bunaxysel pue Bursniaapy - 0LOS
asuadxy
%0°ZS 90'BZL'CEZ TrIRE iy 8r'512'089 swWosY] [ejo)
%0004 8Z'eg- 8Z'8¢ 000 O] VIO - OLLY
%Ly 65'E8 6Ll 8k'85e JWOIU| JUBLSIAL] - GOOY
%1559 S0'2ZE'GL GLE0E'T 08'529'LL uoensIUWpy BULoZ - GOLY
%368~ 05" L4E'b- 05°/81'9 00028t JUSLISDI0T IDUBLIDIO - 060L
%EGH 00'8L0'EE 00'F59'FE D0229'£9 spulad Buiquinld - ROy
% PE 08'Er6'LE Ob'£95'c6 0Z°£05'5ZL SHULAd |BNUBYISH - OE0T
%605 00'0:9'88 00066'S. 00'999'FLL sprsad R8T - OZ0V
%6°92" 00'5.9'¢- 00'689'¢L 00°0LO'0L S)uliad [eads - sLoF
%8S 00512 LT 00'LB8'02Z2 00'909'2rE s)uuag Buipiing - oLor
DLGIL
sbueyq o, afueyn § 81 220 - uep 8L 28q - uer
avYLIOL
6107 18qwa2aq ybnoayy Lenuep siseq [eruaoy
uosuedwon tea) Adld $SOT R Jyold 0ZIL0/L0

Aoyiny Buiping ealy cozewejey ind 62:1



26°188'08-

%0 0re-

26°198'08-

8£°600'501

%E'ET [ANE- 4TS 66°L0S"LL- awoou| 8N
96°995'6vS %L POk 86'095'61S 01'90Z'S.S %0'ZS Fb'48L'E0L 26'646'CS asuadxy |ejo
9Z°0kL- 000 osuadxz IS - 666
00°0C0'0F %8s 00°000'0F 9L LEL'T %B'G 00°000'0F 9LLEE'T Aepng rende) - gz6L
00°00L %06 00°0014 00'ES %00 000 00’0 asuadxg buuiel), - opgL
00°008'ZL %l'L6 00°008'C) 9GS 0EP'ZL %8TL 00°0SF'? 895°GL0'L wawesInquuay sbesiy - 00gL
co'ooL'El 00’66 I0IENSIUMIDY BUINOZ PBJORNUCD - SLLL
SZ'610°L 000 JUBUIIONT PIO PRIDRIUOY - PLLIL
00°004'22 %02k 00°004'2Z 00°08E'LE %06 00'895'E 00'OvE'S 10103dsu] BUIQUIN|Y PRIOENUGD - £LLL
00°Z09'9Z %908 00°Z09'92 0F'L¥0'8r %0'6EL 00'CeB'E 00086’y Jojoadsy| [ediueyoaly pajoenuo] - ZLLL
00'rER'SE %P 051 00'PEB'SE 00050'FS Y%Z'6L 00'502'r 00°DEE'E 10330d8ul [ENOBIT PAIIENAUCD - LLLL
00052 %006 00'0sL 00649 %0002 0062 00054 18qajy pieog AR /ABIETIY - LOLL
00sie %00 0058 oo %00 00'GLE 000 sjeaddy jo paeog Buiping - 0022
00'9LL'} %6'T8 00'9LL'L £S°LLK'L %T e 008V 65°VCh Jenjjag - auoyde|al - L1L9L
00°08F'9 %l voL 00°08F'9 ¥Z'erL'e %L'ELL 00°0¥S LLOL9 a0 - suoydalal - 0L9L
B8'BES %0001 BE'6ES 88'6ES %0004 66'vY 66'FF {2230} Aunoag - 009
00°08y % L0k 0o'ogk 54 ]0-] %LELL oo'or A4 leAOWSY YsEL) - 0SS
ooare'c %6'S6 00'0re's €Z'ZOZ'E Yol vlt 8,072 £9'50¢ s3MINN - G0S5L
00'COP’ 1 %8801 CO'00k'L 19225 %00 000 000 2030 - sneday g 2oUBUAUIEY - OSPL
00'+80°C %184 00'%80'Z fefra-ut %0'0 000 000 leAQLLISY MOUS/AIRD UMET - OZFL
00'085'92 %GB 00°085'ST 06°2rr'ST %% 8Y 005LE'T 0S°2L0'H asusdxy aseauay - 00V
00'00F %6 EF L 00°00F $5'G4S %000 000 SE'LEL S[eUs)el 92unosaY - 0£1L
05'6€9'y %919 CS'SES'Y £€I6RT %00 00°000'2 000 {asemyog/arempaey) saandwo) - 612
00'000°L %G F0L C0'000'L 00°SK0° L %0'591 00004 00'g9L abeysod - GL1/
00’006 %0E0L 00°006'Z 15586 %0001 000 96°Z0L sayddng 200 - 0LLL
BE'E09'S %6 L0} 88'€09°'s 08'ZLL'S %S9zt 86’ Lt 62655 Juadinby 22140 - 0012
00°'6Z5'0L %5'E6 00°625'0L £EVRR'S %9’ GLOPY SLGL sadueg Bungunosy - pZ8e
916856 %8'66 9.'6856 9L 1956 %0004 000 ErSL (1ewsa3xg) poddng Jaindwoy - gLg9
00008 'L %19zl 00°008'81 0000L'€2 %9 VT 0000101 00°00E'e soad |eba7 - 0oge
7LBES'S %Y'LE ZL'6ER'B ¥E'BOD'S %8 b 00'6E0'T Z5CL6 leJouag) - souesnsy)| - 0OL9
PEL0'E0E %1001 ¥8'BL0'€0E L8'STS'E0E %S'60L BegER'se L¥'0Z6'0E sasuadx3 |jeafed - 6059 IRIOL
BT'GBO'SE %100} BZ'580'88 SE0TL'8E %0'LS £2'96L'2 86'6Er'y SIVEINSU[ YIeaH - £1.59
ve'sza'cl %6 66 YE'GZREL T6'LISEL Y2 001 8r'E90" . LZ690°L {vavy) viov - ZL59
S9BLY'Y % 66 99'6iF'r ZLSer'y %958 £1'98E 9pLLE 271 QeaY / QLS /AL - LISY
91L'96a'LL %9°'86 9L'969'LL Ov'SSHLL %986 PLELE'L 0P PSE'L saxel [loaAed - 0159
ar'erL'ee %Z 001 OFTrL'es 99'v.28'28 %9'EEL 08'+9e'e 90205'e SANBNSILIWPY - Sabepm - 059
00°000'59 %y '00L 00000'59 00°05Z'S9 %0'GEL 00'000°S 00'0SL'9 J0yzadsy) Guipling - Aeles - £059
00'0sT'Le %¥ 001 00052'L8 9E'BIS'LE %0'SEL 00'0sz'e 9L LEr'B [e1oyo Guipling - Aejeg - 1959
sasuadx3 11oJied - n0s9
00545 %000 00'G.5 00'6.5 %00 000 000 sucnduasqng g sang - 059
00062 %642 00'c0z 51'66 %00 00'002 000 S@dd qued - 00Z9
00°GL0'L %EE6 00'G20'L LPLo0'L %00 00°GLy 000 Gunaysew pue Buispiaapy - 109
asuadxg
00'6.9'8L5 %L LEL 00'6.9'818 Br'SLZ'089 %8 L2 00°8€5'8C £8'LIF'YE WO (230,
000z %ySLE 00024 BF85Z %EFET 00’0} EP'ET BLUODU| JUBLWIISIAU| - Q)Y
08'529'LL 05°ZeT'L uoneASIIIPY BUIUGZ - 00LY
000L8'L 00'SS JUSLUSIICIUT BOURLIPIO - 060
00'S12'05 %EECL 00'G18'05 00'ZL9'2L9 % 'E6 00018 00'6E0'E Siiusg Buiquinid - opor
0006126 %L SEL 0006} 26 02 L06'6ZL %E bl 0029t L 00°ZLL'0L SIiad [edUeYIBY - 0S0F
00°0FZ'08 Y%l LZL 00°0FZ 06 0098911 %L €6 00° 2879 00'620'9 SHULad 2319913 - 020
00'288'S %Z 0L 00'2es's 00°0L0'04 %IPT 00968 00022 sjuuad [e1oads - GL0F
00'ZEF 6.2 %OZZL 00'ZEF'622 00'909'Z¥¢ %Pl 00'8LE8'6 00°L0S'¥1 siuueg Buppng - cwr_nﬂos
jabpng [enuuy yebpng jo % 1a6png QLA &l 2aQg - uer 3eb6png Jo %, jabipng &L 220
6102 49quadag SIGEY [ENIDIY
aduewloMad }9bpng sso 9 Jyoid OziLoro

fuoyiny Buipjing easy oozewejey wd 1231



1:23 PM Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

01/07/20 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basls As of January 7, 2020
Jan 7,20
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1001 - Cash on Hand (Register} 300.00
1020 - Checking / Consumers CU 20,519.90
1022 - Savings / Consumers CU 25,00
1030 - Checking / Mercantile Bank 80,851.54
1050 - Checking / SMBT 50.00
Total Checking/Savings 101,746.44
Accounts Receivable
1200 - Accounts Receivable 1,012.50
Total Accounts Receivahle 1,012.50
Tetal Current Assets 102,758.94
Other Assets
1600 - Accumulated Depreciation -45,958.61
1900 - Capital Assets 288,943.00
Total Other Assets 242,084.39
TOTAL ASSETS 345,743.33
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payabile
2000 - Accounts Payable 1,625.00
Total Accounts Payable 1,625.00
Credit Cards
2010 - CCU - Mastercard 661.43
Total Credit Cards 661.43
Other Current Liabilities
2070 - Notes Payable - SMBT 140,000.00
2110 - Direct Deposit Liabilities -6,825.93
2300 - Accounts Payables  ADJ 59.30
Total Gther Current Liabilities 133,233.37
Total Current Liabilities 135,519.80
Total Liabilities 135,5619.80
Equity
3010 - Net Position 217,317.42
Net Income -7,093.89
Total Equity 210,223.53
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 345,743.33

Page 1



KABA M)

Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

Mmoo ®>

BUILDING REPORT

December 2019 Residential / Commercial Building Permits and
Construction Values

Total Number of Commercial & Agricultural Permits Issued — 8

Total Construction Value for Commercial & Agricultural Permits - $1,611,087
Total Number of New Residential Construction Permits Issued — 1

Total Construction Value for New Residential Permits — $306,509

Total Number of All Other Residential Permits Issued — 18

Total Construction Value for All Other Residential Permits —$107,220

Revenue / Permit Summary YTD

Total KABA Revenue in December 2019 - $35,437 vs. Total KABA Revenue in
December 2018 - $26,831. This is an increase of 32.1%.

Total Number of Permits Issued in December 2019 — 150 vs. Total Number of
Permits issued in December 2018 — 105. This is an increase of 42.9%.

Total KABA YTD Revenue in December 2019 - $642,722 vs. Total KABA YTD
Revenue in December 2018 - $431,254. This is an increase of 49.0%.

. Total Number of Permits Issued YTD 2019 — 2407 vs. Total Number of Permits

Issued this time in 2018 —1732. This is an increase of 39.0%.

The December 2019 Revenue of $35,437 is 6.8% of the forecast for December
YTD 2019 Revenue ($518,679).

The YTD 2019 Revenue of $642,722 is 123.9% of the forecast for the entire 2019
Projected Budget of $518,679.



KABAIMY

Kalamazoo Area Building Authority

2019 MONTHLY PERMITS BY JURISDICTION

MONTH OF DECEMBER 2019

JURISDICTION PERMIT CATEGORY # PERMITS | PERMIT REVENUE
COMSTOCK BUILDING 1213 8,791
COMSTOCK ELECTRICAL 1414 3,117
COMSTOCK MECHANICAL 17 | ¢ 3,298
COMSTOCK PLUMBING 10 % 1,849
COMSTOCK SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 313 165
COMSTOCK SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER 1] ¢ 55

TOTAL COMSTOCK 57| $ 17,275
KALAMAZOO BUILDING 10 ] ¢ 4,076
KALAMAZOO ELECTRICAL K 1,033
KALAMAZOO MECHANICAL 20| $ 3,248
KALAMAZOO PLUMBING 314 516
KALAMAZOO SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 11$ 55
KALAMAZOO SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER 11$ 55

TOTAL KALAMAZOO 43| $ 8,983
PARCHMENT BUILDING -1 $ -
PARCHMENT ELECTRICAL -13 -
PARCHMENT MECHANICAL 4] ¢ 622
PARCHMENT PLUMBING -1 $ -
PARCHMENT SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 1] $ 55
PARCHMENT SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER -1 $ =

TOTAL PARCHMENT 5| $ 677
PINE GROVE BUILDING 3] s 440
PINE GROVE ELECTRICAL 6] ¢ 806
PINE GROVE MECHANICAL 71 ¢ 1,080
PINE GROVE PLUMBING 3] $ 470
PINE GROVE SPECIAL - JURISDICTION -1 $ -
PINE GROVE SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER -1 $ -

TOTAL PINE GROVE 19] $ 2,796

RICHLAND BUILDING 2] ¢ 1,155
RICHLAND ELECTRICAL 6| $ 857
RICHLAND MECHANICAL 14] ¢ 2,935
RICHLAND PLUMBING 4] ¢ 759
RICHLAND SPECIAL - JURISDICTION -1 $ -
RICHLAND SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER -1 $ =
'RICHLAND 26| $ 5,706
TOTAL 150| $ 35,437
REVENUE REVENUE
DECEMBER 2018 % PREV YEAR MONTH
$ 26,831 132.1%
PERMITS PERMITS
DECEMBER 2018 % 2018 - YTD
105 142.9%




KABAm

Kalimares Ares Budding Actoonty

2019 MONTHLY PERMITS BY JURISDICTION

YEAR TO DATE AS OF: DECEMBER 2019

JURISDICTION _ |PERMIT CATEGORY # PERMITS | PERMIT REVENUE
COMSTOCK BUILDING 185 $ 161,136
COMSTOCK ELECTRICAL 194 $ 41,858
COMSTOCK MECHANICAL 211 $ 43,259
COMSTOCK PLUMBING 166 $ 30,303
COMSTOCK SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 23 $ 1,265
COMSTOCK SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER 8 $ 440

TOTAL COMSTOCK : 787 $ _ 278,261
KALAMAZOO BUILDING 178 $ 64,898
KALAMAZOQO ELECTRICAL 181 33,038
KALAMAZOO MECHANICAL 248 [ 43,378
KALAMAZOO PLUMBING 97 $ 14,536
KALAMAZOO SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 87 $ 4,785
KALAMAZOO SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER 20 $ 1,045

TOTAL KALAMAZOO 811 $ 161,680
PARCHMENT BUILDING 14 3,060
PARCHMENT ELECTRICAL 7 1,474
PARCHMENT MECHANICAL 24 $ 3,150
PARCHMENT PLUMBING 8 3 1,372
PARCHMENT SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 16 $ 880
PARCHMENT SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER 3 $ 165
TOTAL PARCHMENT 72 $ 10,101
PINE GROVE BUILDING 45 $ 12,452
PINE GROVE ELECTRICAL 43 4 6,641
PINE GROVE MECHANICAL 35 4 5,093
PINE GROVE PLUMBING 10 g 1,971
PINE GROVE SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 1 $ 55
PINE GROVE SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER 2 $ 110
TOTAL PINE GROVE : ; 136 5 26,322
RICHLAND BUILDING 166 $ 95,572
RICHLAND ELECTRICAL 149 $ 26,114
RICHLAND MECHANICAL 177 $ 27,762
RICHLAND PLUMBING 101 16,470
RICHLAND SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 5 275
RICHLAND SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER 3 165
~ RICHLAND 601 $ 166,358
TOTAL YTD 2407 642,722
REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE
YTD - DECEMBER % 2019 YTD
2018 itk BUDGET
$ 431,254 149.0% 123.9%
PERMITS PERMITS
e % 2018 - YTD
1732 139.0%
2019 MONTHLY | 2019 MONTHLY CUMULATIVE
CUMULATIVE TOTALS TOTALS
# PERMITS REVENUE
111 | $ 22,393 JAN
282 | % 58,331 FEB
137 | $ 37,487 MAR
208 | $ 48,515 APRIL
231 [ % 63,479 MAY
209 | $ 84,473 JUNE
228 | 3 56,508 JULY
227 | % 59,399 AUG
233 [ 3 81,554 SEPT
210 [ 3 57,228 ocT
181 | $ 37,918 NOV
150 | 3 35,437 DEC
2,407 642,722 2019




00°001% 0070 6102/91/21 swalsdg juswaseq s1ady sueld Jad [[Em UOREPUNO} FZ[IEIS 06€ AD TTEIE  L6S-0T-61€d
00'0L1$ 00°0Z6°01 6102/L1/21  SSHVID ¥ H IMHIOW NHAON  yoene a5eted 3145 wreq 2jod 97 X .87 MaN HAV HI0Z 1292¢  §65-02-614d
000L1% 00°008°8T 610T/90/21 HONIA ® AVSANITENNINOD  yasod of x 6 yum weq sjod 59 x 0 maN IS aNZE 15621 085-0T-61dd
00°001$ 00°0 6102/0¢/31 ¢[0g JwWoH samod  |d 1ad SIINPOW Ad PAIUNOLL JOOI T9 |[EISU] HAV THTH  #09-L0-614d
00°0818$ 000 610Z/L1/21 Suppazg yositd o aad Suijamp Ajurey aSurs yo uontjowaq NAQIOM 928 665-L0-619d
00'051$ 00°0 6102/01/21 Lemvy-[nel] somrag 31§ I3y WOT JO [BAOWALUONI[OWS(] AV O HO0SIS  165°20-61€d
00'0L1$ 000 6102/01/21 O IVHOTI SNAOT 14 [9POLAI WOOIYIBY PUB WOOIPIQ INSBIA AVAONIANVI 6v4F  686-20-619d
00'L6Z°¢$ 00°$8¥°8LS 610Z/61/21 OTT'SYHAQTING HOOTHA €91 © L€, F'S 66L¢ Aouednado paxiw MaN WA YTTTIN 01€01  885-20-619d
00°LFL TS 00°605°90€ 610z/01/21 SIIPPIG UIENSTOOH 7 ‘SWOOIPAq € Y3M SWOY J/S 9C8] MON I HIOAOD QTIA 0597 +8S-20-614d
00'001$ 00°0 61L0Z/+¥0/Z1 PUEHED) WEpY  sul ‘gSQ S)eays £ soe[dal ‘o Jual JooI-ay HAVY WYHOHOA €918 £85-L0-61dd
00°001% 000 6102/20/T1 OTI 0D Sugooy] apsayeT  JuawAeliepun Jo Juswasdeldal pue Jo Jeal, IS MOOUd AMAHW 9v€l  8.5-20-616d
00°0L14 000 6102/91/21 swalsAg yuswaseq s194Y  sued 1od warsAs aSeurelp 100)qns [[BISNI IS UV MEN ZZLE  TLSL0-619d
00¢62°Z$ 00'TFY TOF 6102/€0/21 OLLDMULSNOD SINHEIOY WIf  sixa o3 uomppe ([-S ‘@) Aouednooo PaxIW  "AV NVOIHDIN H 06101 $95-L0-614d
00+ 14 00°005°L9 6102/€1/21 ANVINY 2 OSNOJTY VOITVd  "Suip|ing Aiin swely 1sod J's 00SHy moN HAV NI T 95801 SHSL0-619d
000018 0070 610C/91/21 swasdg jwawaseq s34y erd 1od woysAs oSeureIp uonEpUNO} [[BISU] HAAV NHAQIOM T1§  11$-20-6149d
000L1$ 00'0 6102/€2/21 swalsdg AOQHOEIT  1m Ul [y Pur J00P Anud SUNSIXD dAowRY IS NOLONITIV N €21 009-90-61€4d
00°0.2$ 00°0 6102/81/21 vFUISIIY P WECIUYA 991G PUB ADUS ‘W00 SUIAI| “‘USYOID oweq A 9OVED LTHE 865-90-619d
00001$ 0070 6102/91/21 swalsdg uswasey s394y sue(d Jod mopulm $52132 JSWASEq [[BISUL T LIQUDMOAVIIN #90€  965-90-614d
00%988  00°¥09°151 6102/0Z/T1 U BOWONASUO) 3D S LOTOL SUNSIXD JO J'S 6168 01 UONRIA[Y HAV THSOW T 128 65-90-61€d
00'512$ 007005 6102/42/T1 yusws0zdw] awo auolsde)  asd Anus Sunisixs 1340 UOHIPPE JOOI 8X 9 LS NIVIN A 6262 L8S-90-614d
00°0L1% 00°0 6102/90/T1 Juawasordwy] swol suoisde)  3ood pue [jem Jo1I3ul JO uood saoway @I IOVEO €1PE  985-90-614d
00°0L1$ 0070 6102/50/21 DT 'SHLEYHAOUd [Z  ¥'s €411 Sunsixs o Louednado jo aSuryy HAAV TASOW M 14T $85-90-619d
000L1$ 000 6102/70/21 NO ‘NVAM-ONVS 1 eousuduiew Auadord aad snedsi 1oLaju] QY TIND 9502 185-90-614d
00°05Z$ 0070 6102/61/21 07) uonanIIsHo) Issozode)) wreq 2[od $9x(p owaq HAV NVOIHDIN F 6217 9¢5-90-6149d
00°L69°T$ 00°958°L6T 6102/L1/21 OTT vomdnnsuo) doysig  Fuipping AouRdnooo paxiul J's 000 MIN MY ANIAVY SZ8T  8€+-90-614d
00°051$ 000 6102/61/21 UCHOTHISUOT) 29 SIWOLY SHER, *a$N0Y JUNSIXS - UONI|OWA(] HAV O HCPOS  209-€0-619d
00500 1% 00'00%'9L1 610Z/91/T1 DTTJINOYD TIVL INVSVHHA  urping a8eio3s swe.g 1sod 3°s 9L [1 MoN AMH 68 W H ZeH0T  08F-C0-61dd
PA[Ig 1unoury anrep panss] eq swre N yoeonddy uondiosa( yFom SSPPY  H MUK _
0202/ L0/10 ponssy simuId J SUIprng A[PUON



Bupmg = SdATITIIS W]

ANV
[61/1£/21 - 61/10/21] <PUOUN SNOWAIJ>> UT PansSTAE(] WU

sproasny v -wonemndog

00918%20°C$ an[e A UOTONIISUOT) [RIO0 .

00Corv1$ PG TeroL, [T SITUIDJ JO IdqUINN



000118 610e/LE/et uosuyo[ T wepy [leIsul 101239090 79 Tg NYHHINON 6L€87  14§702-61Hd
00'981% 6102/LL/21  SSIMV'ID % H LYEIOY NHAOM ureq sjod 10§ 51119319 HAV HLOZ 1292€  $95-02-61Hd
00081 610T/S0/21 sy (3,880 SLOL PAINIOEBJNUBL MIN (T ANTTESVI L6947 655-0Z-61Hd
00011$ 610T/20/21 srnoary radsy |[EIsuL J0JeloUsD) 1SZ/1€T 1ibS  9S5-0z-61dd
00°0T18 610T/0¢/21 I3MOJ 29 UMET EIOSTIING |[BISUL JOJRIDUID) VA VAVINIO 1669 78S-20-6LHd
00°Z8H$ 6102/0¢/21 18[0g WOR] oMo ] [{BISUL IB[OS MY (98 PN PLIS ‘Sa[NpOWW pajunow 3oo1 79 AV THIGHO LISL061Hd
00°8S 1% 6102/92/21 A4V ® 4 IV ANVINTIOA uonIppy HAY WVHAIO 6928 SL5-L0-61dd
00011 6102/€2/21 SUWIANSAG WIB[YINIDG sugj ¢ 0] [aued 211§ SUNSIX2 WO SUOIIAUUOD JO U0 M WISIVY S0Z€ §/6-L06THd
00°0TT$ 6102/91/21 IS0 ] 29 U] PIUSTING [[2ISUE JOJRIAUAD) IS HISZ N 116t 296-L0-6THd
0o or1$ 6102/91/21 1MO0J 79 TMET BWSUING {[BISUE J0IRIRUID 1S NIVIN T 2688 995-20-610d
00°091% 610T/01/21 O (MIVHOTI SNAOCT yieq Jiey € Swppe 2 qieq 13isew Junepdn AV ONICNVI 6v6F  296-20-61dd
00°SH1$ 610Z2/90/21 SwalsAg waepyanoeg  Ue Sunmp uado Aoy os [aued wWiele 211 01 $2)88 FUnosuu0)) OO F 0025 195-.061Hd
00ZZEh 6102/50/21 TNVd ¥IKTIaH Swioy maN IS (MEE N 0OF  095-L0-G1dd
009 1% 610T/€0/T1 IR VYV |opowal uayouy MN HLVONAM 2856 /S6-20-619d
00°91¢$ 6102/20/21 ST0)OENIUOT) DL PIIEPHOSUOT) awoy MeN I LOdAA 8ET  +SC-20-61Hd
00'91¢% 610T/20/21 SI0IDEITOT) D[] PRAEPOSTO) JUWIOY MON WD LOJIA 192 €SS-£0-61d
0091¢4 610Z/20/21 SIOIDEIIUOT) JINDI[H PRAEPIOsSUOT) AWOY MIN VIO LOJIA 6§72 265-L0-61Hd
00°91¢$ 610¢/20/ct SIOLVRUOT IEHIIH PATPROSUOD) Swoy MaN LS TIIH NOLLY.LS 60 186-20-61Hd
00°9814 6102/08/C1 I VIVEVT ‘LITELA 39IAI2S JINVQ9 - 9516 J0] 21109 HAV NOTAVA L1L 485906 1Hd
eGelooly  00'9TI8 610c/0€/T1  “TIM % > HIHAVZITH ‘ONSOH YSIUlJ JUILLISE] 10§ [E2LNII|T NTMOOYINTV 969 £85-90-61Hd
/qum:mwww - 00°0% 610Z/iT/T1 MDAy Jalsog ddnug (say wouy saredar) 2914158 JIAV 00T FAV NOLTTIV) 111§ 9/5-90-61Hd
, ’ 00°011$ 6102/61/21 07} DEIOAH TSI |[B25Uf JOJRIRUD) IS LIVL €02k 2.5-90-6Lfld
00°s¢1$ 6102/91/21 Jmosrg A8 J23ULOOSIP 3HALIS PUR “YDIIMS JIJSUBI] “10IRIDUDD) T OVAISIVIO 1041 S9S-90-61Hd
005014 6102/11/21 07) PooM BE(T ZLLSRIISO1 # WgopieSdn ao1a1eg HAY JAOUSIOD 441 €96-90-61dd
00°011% 6102/50/21 3moary 3denrog IojeIauss Aq puels my g [|2Isu] M YIAOT) QI S1vE €+S90-61Hd
007151 610T/S0/T1  SSITEN ® NOANVEE ‘AHSWNY JUSWSEq 01 SAPUMS 79 SN0 PPV AV HATHSNOAHT 608¢  9€5-90-61Hd
00011$ 610z/91/21 uosuyo[ T wepy [EIsul 107e12uaL) ISHIST NG6IIOL  0L5-€0-6LHd
00°011$ 610Z/91/21 vosuyof -] wepy l[eIsul 10121390y IS AOOMROd TELL  695€0G1Hd
00°011$ 6102/91/21 vosuyo[ -] wepy |[EISUL JojeIouany AAVAT T 00IS  895-€0-618d
00001$ 6102/¢0/T1 VN RV ATIAVEL ‘LLOOYHH 9002 uajoryo 01 1inpuod ur punoiSispun o0z 1omod [jnd AV € ¥6SS  855-€061Hd
00 11¢h 610Z/50/21 JUT $IDATDG [EDIINR T UESION] JWOY MON] TAV G H 6068 S55-€0-61Hd
00'9TT$ 610z/20/T1 OTT 9m991d DOY ureq ajod urjepne pue WSy ‘Jeued [[eisul 1S ANZE N 8186 TrS€0-61Hd
TesIoTd
P2[Ig Junoury panssy aeq aureN] Jueonddy uondmosa(g oM SSIIPPY # WUy _
0202/ £0/10 Panss SIWIJ dpes], A[IUOIA



00°STi$
00es1
CIRSAR S
000¢L$
0011
00521
00°6z14
00°591%
00011%
00'ST1$
00°9T1$
00°591%
00°0vT$
00°011$
006218
00651
00051
00°'101%
000¢1$
00°sz1$
000.7%
006614
00°0¢18
00°0€T$
00'06L$
00'szIg
00°strTs
0Urszig
VUTARS
00'sT1S
00°56TS$
00°6C1$

0001
0001

00°€0L'S$

6102/0Z/C1 Sugoory 2p Sumeary mowSe
6102/02/21 07) PO TE(]
6102/61/21 TEIURYISA] INIIYIN
610Z/€2/21 suj Suroon) 3 Suneay MY
610Z/L1/T1 suonnjog A8y swop
6102/91/21 Sun007) % Sunesy] pSooaspai
610e/21/T1 Sugoon % Sunesy] 12009IN
6lLOg/T1/T1 Sumoon) % Sunespy F20qaTN
610T/91/21 [ESTUBTR 11D
610T/11/21 Buyoo7) 2 Suneay 10qeIN
6102/11/T1 v % Sunesy] 2y Py
610T/11/C1 Iy 7 Sunesy any pyg
6102/11/21 ary g Bugesy] amy Py
610T/01/21 su] Sutsonipuor) Iy 29 Sunesfy J[
610Z/60/21 Funoory 33 Sunesy 120q1N]
6102/90/21 IBSSTA (T T INEM
610Z/20/21 1wy 2p Suneap oIy PYg
6102/50/21 IV 29 BungEsy soepmog
610Z/0¢/T1 Sunoon) 2 Sunesy s1aI0Ig poos
6102/92/271 Su007) 79 Sunreyy piooasparp
610z/€T/21 JuT S UOIPM
610Z/91/71 1y 39 Sugesy sny Py
6102/91/21 IO 29 UMET PIUSTUIG
610T/91/21 TIMOJ 29 UMY BWSTING
6102/21/21 U “BOG 29 UNOIIRT ] "
610Z/60/21 Bunoon 3 Suneay 120qgaIN]
610T/60/21 TeoTUEYDa -V
G10Z/+0/21 vopeaduyay so8oy
610T/+0/T1 vonersSuyay s1aSoy
610T/20/21 Suroon) 2p Bunesy pSooaspaip
610T/20/Tt o] Butsontpuor) Iy 7 Sunwegy J[
610T/20/T1 07) oo UE(]
:paIng [P0,
610Z/05/21 1200 29 UMPT PIUSUIG
6102/€2/21 TESITA J(O) MO DUV

owsoe|das soewin
Juawaor[dai [100) 3¢ 0BG

|[eIsul IOJRIFUIN)

BUXS | puk ‘waIshs YN [ ‘sjlod Suijooo o1 Surdid ssesoig

Ialeay Iajem 7y eorwing aoe[day
Juowdoe|das 9orUIN,g
juawaoe[dal aoewing

wpwsedal Dy 2p 20BUIN,
191B31 aqn) Jueiped ase(day
Juswasedal soeUIn,]
justuase[dai sorN{
Juauradedal DY AH

Jadwep pue “Isipruny ‘sopwny avejdsy

UIY2IY pUe I9AID ‘ue) yreq Sunue
juswaoe[dal sorwmn
wawase[dal Dy 2 aorwI|

uawadedal 1onp pue eoewIng DV AH

u2wasrldal 12183y J91e AN
[[BISUL JOTRIOUDL)

Juswdde|dal sovWIT,]

IWOL MIN

Js[10q 2 Suiqny JuEIpRI I00[] U]
|[EISUl JojelaUan)

[[E3SUL JOJRIDUDD)

691 Surp|ing 18 wsAs sopjunids adid 1am man

Juawese[dal aorUIn
JWIOY MIN
quswadedas asewIng
usase[da aaruIn,]
Juswade[das adewng
WOy MIN

Jupwddepdar soguIn g

[[eIsul I07BIoUuan)
[[E1SUL TojRIsUan)

NTHSNYG Iddddd ¢£9%
NT TOOMMOMWAV +89C
IS 1JV.L €0T¥

HAV TdSOW H 126

LS TIVAISHAVHS 921
LS NOONEAIVTIO N 806
AV ODVIIHD 02¢
HAY dDAITO0D ++¢1
T NNAM €Z8¢E

HAY TIIHNYOHL 01#¢
HAY IDAITOOD #iF
A HONVIN CIEL

AVAL ONIANIA 062F
QAT LSINHANI 81¢T
ANV TAVATIHATIS §SLF
HAV JOVTIVA 065
HAY VII 8IS

HAV NOILSHM 006+
HAV d 994801

A TOAE HIOVH $5¢9
HAV 9 4 6068

HAV D L19L

LS ACOMXOd €¢LL
HAV HA T 0018

LS H18Z N 00.9

NT OAVIIATILS §Te8
T wasneT [0

NTAVO INOLS 2825
LS HILO0¢ N ¢v8

A dOOATTIA 6L66
YEUIPS S¥E9

LD AOOMAIIA F6501

+69-90°61Nd
£69-90-61INd
TG9-90-61INd
689-90-6TINd
G89-90-61TINd
LL9790-6TINd
129-90-61Nd
0L9-90-61Nd
069990 61INd
899-90-61INd
L99-90-61INd
999-90-61INJ
199-90-6TINd
8699061
949-90-61INd
£69-90-61TINd
99906 TINd
£¥9-90-6TINd
80L-¢0-61INd
T10L-C0-6TINd
969-¢0-6TINd
£89-¢0-61Nd
189-¢0°6TINd
089-20-61Nd
099-¢061INd
L9906 1IN
GCO€0-61Nd
169-¢0-6TINd
099-€0"61Nd
890 61Nd
LY9-20-61Nd
SF9L06TNd

[EITUE I

¢ SITUIRdG JO YoquInN

407719 NIIHIAON LF¢82
W # ANH OF eevll

185-0Z-61Hd
¥L5-0c-61dd



001114 6102/€2/T1 Fuiquingg prepony Srerny
00°001% 610Z/21/21 suonn[oS YWeE OO
00°822$ 6102/21/21 sootareg Furquungg zouadng
00°0.2% 6102/60/21 $a21A2G Suqum| g Jomadng
00¢8T° 11§  :P3MI 1e10],
00'0€1$ 6102/0¢/21 19MOJ 29 UMET EWUSUING
00°0.2$ 610T/92/2T1 DV 29 BUNEST] STIION
00°5Z1$ 610Z/€T/21 woneIaduyey stedoy
00°001$ 610Z/¢z/C1 wESN 3O W3 Ve
000¢1$ 610T/L1/T1 I2MOJ 3§ UALT BLISUDSD)S
00°561% 610Z/91/21 Sunoor; x Sunray ST,
0001 6L0Z/01/21 TOUVD 2 HSSH[ NOSQIVHOIE
005628 610z/61/21 SIDIATOG [EDTUBTDIRN [[PAPIECT
00°101% 6102/81/21 [EIIUBYIP] TOSPITUa]
00°sZ1$ 6102/91/21 Sureon 2p Suneoy] oA
00°101$ 6L0Z/¥0/T1 eotueyoey 3 Iog wnmoadg
00°0¢1$ 610z/0¢/21 IPMOJ 29 UMET BUSTIDIG
001818 610¢/92/21 99V ® T ATV INVINTIOA
00sZ1$ 610T/92/21 Sun007) 29 SunEsap] 10GIIN
00°101$ 6102/92/21 Surpoor) 2 Funeapy pSoocaaparp
00'1L1$ 610T/€T/T1 ary 2p Suneay snry oy
00°6214 6102/61/2T 1y 2p Sumeaty o1y pog
00°¢s1$ 610T/61/21 Sunoon xp Sunrary pSoosspasa
00°0¢14 610¢/91/21 IIMO % UMET FISUING
000€1% 6102/91/Ti I9MOJ ¥y UME| BUISUIANG
005218 610z/91/21 Suroor) wp Sumeayy s 3e8zapy
000924 oﬁom\oﬁ.\wﬁ [UOTURYID -V
00°SHZ$ 6102/0T/21 TEDTUBLDRIN [-V
00°5Z1% 6102/€1/21 003 poop UECT
00°091% 6102/90/21 IFSSIADCT T ITEAN
00°651$ 6102/20/2T1 073 POOA, TB(]
0006L8 6102/20/21 UORD2101] 23] Ipudng
000618 610T/92/21 Y 2 Funeat] suaoN
00°901% 610T/€2/T1 Suroon) 79 SumEa] vERLIS(
00°6S1$ 6102/02/21 v 2p Suneapy a1y [Pg

MUIS UMY O} UIRIp peq 2oe|doa 03 sul] Jomas Aing

UOISIDAUOD I9MOUS 0] qn,
JWOY MIN

QUIOY MaN

[[BISUL JOJRISUSLY
WOy MON
wasedas soewIng
][EISUl J0JeISUSL)

J[BISUI I0JRISUID)

WO IB[OPOW 10J IFJIPIWNY pUE ‘DY “YJomianp ‘asewmng

[[BISUl IDIBIDUS0)
S,N1Ld ¥ Sul[reisuf
Juswane[dal 1o1eat] amem
uswaoridal aovLn]
juatuoor[dai 19383y 151 M
[[EISUT JOJEIDUDD)

UoIppy

wawdedar uyds gy
Juawaoe[dal 197eay I3e M
uswor|dal HJVAH
wswasedar 1sj10g
justade|dal DY 79 sovwINn]
[[EISUL JOJRIDUID)

[[eISUl I0JRI2UA0)
swase[dal sovwwinyg

WO M3N

WY MIN

justuaoe[dal sovuing

UL 190D 2AOUW ‘Q5URI JUSA
uswde[dal vy pue aoBwIny

190G UBLWINE] 00ZRWE|RY 10 WMSAS IopuLids a11] 1om maN

Jwoy MaN

Juowade[dal Uy Ylrg pue 1e1esY JOTEA

woweoedal JVAH

1S INZE N 8EHOT  €8€-€0°61dd
IS AN N9ILS  SLE-€0-61dd
UTUSNET p508  89C-C0-61dd
UTUSWTOZ08  S9E-E0-6Tdd
SurquEnyy
29 ISITULIIJ JO JOqUINN]
4079 NYHFHLYON Lb€8T  90L-0T 6N
LS CINZE 15621 $0L-02-61Ad
HAV ANT $92ST 66908 61N
W # ANH OF €SPTL 86906 1N
440178 NYHEHLYON 6£€8¢  ¥89-0C-6IINd
€59 MO 6988  €89°02-61Nd
IS TAVIES89C 65902 61N
NT SYHAdOHS ¥1L  889-81-61INd
INNOWHDUVA $08  £89-81-6TINd
VIONVASH 225 SL981-61Nd

ST OVINAVH 05¥

Ad VAOvIaO 16£9
HAV WYHOYO 692S
T NINAKX 9829

HA VATAOCOM T659
HAV TN H 5L€6

LS SIDNYHA 209

HAY TOOMALSTYD #019
LS HIBZ N 11¢t

LS NIVIN H 2688

AID HHLIHAOVHS 9616
LS TIIH NOLLV.LS 602
1D 1L.OJdd 262

IS NHHTIHA 8911
AN HIVONAM T8CE
HAV H 9 8668

LS UHATE 2282

HAV HOIFT8Z1¢

LS AFIAYYETD L011
HAV TIVASTIIH 1€45¢

TYO-81-GINd
LOL-LO6TIN
SOL-LO-6TINd
COL-LO-01TINd
COL-LO61INd
004-L06TINd
169-L0-6TNd
069-L0-6TINd
6L9-LO61IINd
8L9°L0-6TINd
9L9-LOG TN
FLO-LO-6TIN
€L9LOGTING
2L LOGTINL
$69-LO-6TINI
PrO-LO-6TIN
8¢9-L0-6TINd
FES-LO-6TINA
L69-90-6 1IN
$569-90-61Nd



[61/1€/21 - 61/10/T1] <PUOW STOMAIII> U panss[21v(]Iwnag

ANV

Suiquiny = ad4 prwse g mwIag

YO [Poweypa = 2dd [ inuIag
YO oM = 4 prursamuag

sprooay v ‘uonemndog

O] :SIWIdJ JO IdqUINN]

00°087°0C$ :PoIIid 1e0],
00¥6S°¢s P21 18I0
00°091% 6102/02/21 VOI$3H( ® AQ0D NOSYIANY
00°SST$ 6102/11/21 DT Swqumd 3 14
00°S518$ 6102/20/21 DT Swqumnig O I
00°092¢ 6102/08/21 Smqumg g
00°6¥18 6102/92/21 ALLV % H TTVA JNVINTIOA
00°692% 610z/9z/21 neaH 79 SWqUM UEWPOOK ey
00'692$ 6102/92/21 nE3]] % SWqUIM]] UBWPOOA, JIEW
006928 6102/02/21 neaH % Swiqunig urwpoo YIEW
00°001% 610Z/L1/21 su] Suneaedxwy [MS
00°001$ 6E0Z/91/21 STV NILIVIN
00'¢81% 6102/01/21 © QIVHOII SNAOA
000S1$ 6102/60/21 Swmqumy vog 7 s$3Eg
00°001% 6102/90/21 IaMag 39 Surquun|J WISPO
00°€91% 6LoT/¢eT/21 eorueyIaly Oy
00°¢sTh 6E0T/02/21 131503 UeHg
00001E 610Z/21/T1 SUOUN[Og yIEg Oy

QWIOY JE[NPOW mau 10) Sulquinid
SLWOY PAIMIBINUBW MIN

2WOY JB[NPOW MAN

SWOY MIN

uonippy

QWOY MIN

WO M3IN

WOy MIN

UOHIAUUOD JIMAG

35N0Y SY1 0] qMIS - UOLIOAUUOD 193em AJID
eq Jiey e Suippe 29 yieq 19psew Sunepdn 29 SuAo
O PUZ PUE IS UI2MI3Q UIRIP UIBW A0U ([9POLIAL UIYINY

UOUIIUUOD JIMIG
1[UN [2JUSI pIwng & surquinjd-ay

Imn} ¢ pue sYUIS 1oo[} ¢ 03 35eureap Arenues punoigiapun

wetuaoeldal Iamoys

0z ISITUIIdJ JO I_d3QUINN]

€69 M0 6588 08¢ 0T-61dd

Y AINITHSVE LE8FT #L2-02-61dd
068 IO THG0E  FOE0Z-61dd

LS (Uee N 126T  L8EL0°61dd

HAV WVHOIOT 6925 98¢€-L0°61dd
LS AHIAQNVYID 661 S8€-L0-61dd
UID LOJdIAd $¢ $8¢-L0-61dd

IO LOdIAa ¢e  18¢-L0-61dd

HAV AVAAIN LS8 8L%8-L0°61dd
JS HIOZ N 90ST  LLE-L0-61dd
AV DONIANVI 6FFF  69¢-L061dd
AN HILVONAM 288 L9€-L0°6Tdd
IS dddH=1S 865 99¢-L0-61dd
HOVS N 8Ze T8¢ 90-61dd

JAV TASOW H 125 6L£790-61dd
HAV VAOANY 926¢  9L£790°61dd



00°58¢€$ 21, 301 s93g TeI0L
S :2dA ] J0,1 symuxa g (B30
pasolddesicy onoadsu] asueusiurely Auadold 610Z/S1/11 ssuonoadsuy
pasoxddy uonpadsul-ay ey Auadolg 6102/90/C1 :suondadsuy
IuaTIyaaE | woly jsoubat asueusutepy Aredosg mmondosag yrom
000118 610T/ST/11 YHIOYd OOZVINVTVI 0C079L€090 ¢ a1 MHIANTARI N €41 €01-81-618d
paaoaddesiq onoadsu] ssueuayuiely Auadolg 610z/91/T1 :suondadsuy
217 2UMUSHLS 0} INP YP0ISWOT) W] Isanbaz avueusyureyy Agedorg  Uonduosaq oy
00755§ 610T/91/C1 SHTIVHD ¥INANL 0F0-08¢81-L0 IS (VDI 102 L01-L0-61Sd
pasoddesicy oioadsu] sourunutely Atedolg 610Z/60/Z1 rsuopoadsuy
yooiswor) woig 1sanbax sdueusmeyy Lradorg  SUoRdIosa( HIom
00°65% 610T/60/C1 LITdS 6102 1€0-081-LT°LO NATIOM 928 901-L0-61Sd
panoiddesig uonoadsuj eury 610Z/01/21 :suonoadsury
[EYSTEJ 237,] §201SWO7) woiy sanbax asurusiurepy Asadozg  SUODAUIOSa( HIop
Hrsss 610T/60/C1 2 ADNVN NOSIVEHI 060-89¢-LT-20 HAY NHQIOM Z01 SOL-L0r6tsd
paaoxddesiq onoadsu| aurunuUIE Aladold 610¢/60/01 ssuonsadsuy
panocaddy uonpadsut-ay Jurepy Auadoig 6107/91/21 :smonoadsug
cozrweley] woiy 1sanbarx ssueusjurepy Hradosg wonduosa sFom
00011$ 610T/60/01 TI ‘SHILIHIOUd HSV.L 060-99¢C1-90 AAV XNOUG 0221 Z60-90-61Sd
Te10], 23] paIsnyg sre(q DpDUKO WPAUIIN] [90FEJ ssIppy qof # U
I J Teroadg
0202/L0/10 sisonbay soueumnurey L1radorg Apruop



S
00°98¢$

ISITId (] Te10 [, pUeIn)
199, Te10 |, puein)

Arewrwung 1yoday

610/ 1E/TT
GNV 610T/10/1Q usemlag
Pa|npaiogawl | 938 uonyadsu]

any
(334) A'TOH = smpIguIsd
ANV Hudg

[eroedg = adALNuuag HuLag
NV 1sanbay

uonaIpsunf = A103318) NuLIad
sprossy v :vonemdog



15anbay BUMQ = AJ0TeIE) NULIS]

MO wonoadsuj

193005 120N = AI0SMED) NULIR]

MO uoissauddng

pooH = Alo3aeNuuay

AO

nuwad rroedg = AroSere)yuus

| ANV

. €/C1-61/10/T1] <yuow

N .mw.HEHDn._“ ﬁﬁHO.H\ —UGNHMV mzoﬁ_mwwwhmc_ Mom“mwwma.h_:tom

sprosay v uenemdog

00°011$ -89 [e10 ], puerd)

Arewruung 130doy

00°0TT$ :0dAY 30,y seo g [EIOT,
(4 :29dAT, 30,4 SITCUIDJ [€10L

pasoiddesiq uonvadsu] 194008 ININ 6107/¢7/T1 :suonodadsuy

vonzadsur 1aypos sorepy  wonduosaq rom

00°55% 610Z/0T/Z1 SNV SO 002-9¢1-12°L0 IS MOMION 1S1 801-20-61Sd

paroiddesig uondadsuy A1o5eg 610Z/60/21 ssuonosadsuy
Y0 R anow 3l Jo adoas 7
SPISING JAOW O MO /PIOM ~ JUIWIST( Y] UF AFUILIND 13UVOISIP 23 T18UT

H 0,
- GOﬂUU&mﬁm BOQrIsuo’) ﬁo..ﬁwn—mHUmUQ oM

00°55$ 610T/£0/C1 I °d WVITIG “gd9daved 1L1-9¢h-11-90 TAY TAOTOTOD +2L1 POT-90-61Sd

12101, 393 pPaIUy ey IDUMQ QU] [201eg ssoIppV qof # MwIag

TR J Terdadg

0202/ 20/10 159nbay UM - MR g Te1dadg ATpuoy



Ti01

0- - 1IeD IIoY SsaH ewley Buipiing auy Jo aseydund ayy 40y uoRN|osal auy aaoldde oy BT/ZT/CT
Shouljueun 19|lIIN euLieH Jaye| Juswabebua auy ubis 03 Auioyine ayy ASuyol "SI MB pue Japa| Juswabebus syl aAcidde oy 6T/zT/CT
sholliueun ASULOW euwey Aepijoy buneol) sy} 8500y 03 JJe1s auy) Moj|e pue ajnpauyds Aepioy sy aacudde 01| 6T/Z1/2T
SHOUHBEHR I Asuyoly vavyl 10} 10)0adsul buiquinid g [EJIUBUDAW PaoRUcD € Se SAeH yoing ancidde )| 61/61/TT
snowiueun Aauyop FETT 9INPaYRS BunSeW Pleog 0Z0C 243 2A0ldde 01| 61 /p1/11
0-€ 11D lioy euwliey ASUYOI 0z0z 129k 1epualed ay) 10 7ST vd 0 0 3O 03 uonn|osay auyy anoudde oy 6T/BT/TT
snowiueun euLe, Asuyo $33) Unod

: H oW pue 3)npayds 994 yuwad Buipiing syl 03 sebueyd Buipnpul SWajl PAPUBWE YIIM INPaYds 994 Y3 aaoidde 0) 61/¢T/11
snowiueun Bl Aauyom AepnQ [endeD 0] aaow pue sbuiuiel pauielsy 6T/bT/TT

WOol) PIAOWRI N0r$ aud Yum (seyaind 22140 uc JuawAed umop ayi Joj) 196png 6107 papuawy aul aAaoldde 03
Sjuawndop buipua| pue 1oeI3U0d By 0] SPEW 24 0] PSaU SUOHBILJIPOW JOUIW Aue JI “19D3nuy "W 1 SUIM|Y “JIA

snouliueun Asuyol euLiey 01 Auoyne ay3 anb 0} pue spuswndop Buipus) pue uonedydde ueol ayy ubis 03 AjUoyINe By} SUIMIY "Il aab o3| 6T/FT/TT
snowueun Ssay ASUyop 19%ped pleog 3yl Wl papnpUll o 11 /a1
J0u pue Buneaw ay3 e pajuasald sem Yoiym ‘g10z 404 sbuipuld 3pny JueduiubiS uelsIsoD Jsuel ayl 2Aaoldde oy
snowiueun SSoH ASUyol G9°800'€T1$ Jo uonsod 3au e yym sbuiules paule3as oy Juswisnipe auj yum 3ebpng 0zoz 2yl aaoidde ol 61/0T/0T
snowlueun EET euwLleH pajuasald se syjuswsnipe 196pnqg () (1@ aaoidde oy 6T1/0T/0T
snowiueun 191N Asuyop 2bebyuow mau syl uo JuswAed umop 2yl Joj SBulules paulelal asn 03 yayyl azuouyne o] 6T/0T/0T
snowliueun SSoH 2wy JUSWIBY |19S B Ang papuswie ay3 ubis 61/0T/01
0] SUIMJY “JI 9ZLIoYIne 0} pue (392ed pJeog ul papnjoul Jou) Juawaalby [j9s g Ang papuawe ay3 aaoidde 03
snowiueun SSaH eulieH Baiad ANjod Mau 61/21/60
a3 Jo Buluuibag a3 18 aADaYS ‘AjlenUuR HHZG$ 03 ddURINSUI Yeay Jo nal| ul puadis auyy puswe o
snowliueun BLLIRH ssoy ‘|leME U] SDURINSUI UOISIA pue [eluap ‘jedipawl ayy pasoidde oy 61/21/60
snowlueun uosdwoy | SETI |[EMaURI 2oueINSUl 3417/A17/als au3 2aoudde o 61/21/60
Snowiiueun SSoH euweH papn|oul 1agAd g buljjlamp 82140 a3 yIm |emaual adueinsul [e1suab ayy aacudde o 61/21/60
snowiueun BET([IA] ewLey smeT Ag 2yj 01 apew sabueyd ayy anoidde 03] 61/21/60
snowiueun YW ewiey (6T0T ‘T ISNbny pajep) 1240 Ws} ueo| Isni g 61/21/60
yueg uebiydlly UISYINOS SYi U0 SUOKIPUOCD 3Y3 UO pPaseq SJUNOJDe YSIjgeIsa 0] SUIM|Y "Iy SZLOYINe 0}
Snowlueun FETT eulieH 15n1] 3 jueg uebiydip uisyinos yum ssaooid Bupueuly syl uibaq o3 sum|y "l 9zuouyine 0y 61/¢1/60
snowliueun euwlIeH Asuyoly dde 104 epuaby il Jaquydas Jo buias|y pleog panpayds xau 9y 03 sme-Ag papuswy 43 ppe 0} 61/80/80
snowjueun 9|1 Asuyop 000T$ peaoxa 01 30U “Aomuns Auadoud e uielqo 03 sumpy I aaoudde oy 61/80/80
snowiueun SSoH 1sno4 pajuasald se 21npadold sjeaddy jo pleog yayy oyl anoidde ¢y 6T/T1//0
Jobnay “JW Aq pancidde si
AIIUHEED Sl eulieH 19m19] asuodsal ay3 90UO ‘ueld UOIDY UOIDD.LI0)) 10} JaNs| asuodsal ay) ubis 03 auim|y il aacidde o3 61/02/90
snowiueun 121N ewey juausnipe 19bpnq Alessanau ayl ayew pue ainjpuadxa ubry 1T 2yt anoidde o1f 61/0Z/90
Snowiueun suoLwg Aauyoy w3} 1eaA -7 B 10} Jaquialy pleog opihO-x3 abieq Jy a3 se suodleg ‘S uiodde-ai 0y 61/8T/40
junowe paaoidde ayj ul suopipsunl Jaquisw 2y} Aq papiaoid bueq juswied
- 118D 110Y SR Asuyow umop e yum ‘abebpiow [euonuaaucd eia Bulpiing 2010 vayyl 2ul Buiseyound yaim plemio) aAow 03 61/12/20
snolliueun Aauyop suoww3 'ubis 0] auIM|Y ‘1|4 9ZLIOYINe pue Juawaalbe Juswabebus 3yl aAoidde 03 6T/1Z/20
snowljueun suoww3 SSOH SoIDI|0d papuaWy/maN uo ainjeubis s,uosiadiiey) Jo uonippy au3 10aye urind 01| 61/1¢/20
snowliueun FETTI Asuyop bunosiy pieog W8T |Udy pa|npaydsad aU] [13Un 2unpadold s|eaddy Jo pleog ay) auodisod 0| 6T/12/20
SI10A d3aNoD3s Ad 3AaYK NOILOW alvdad

Aoyiny Buiping eay ocozewejey

L éqx
610C - 901 NOLLOW c




